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PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, INC.
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Ladies and Gentlemen:
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In compliance therewith, Alphaland Corporation (the “Company”) hereby submit the
enclosed Comprehensive Corporate Disclosure.

We hope you find everything in order.

Thank you very much.

Corporate Information Officer

The Penthouse, Alphaland Southgate Tower 2258 Chino Roces Avenue Corner EDSA, Makati City, Philippines Tel.: (632) 337-2031 Fax: (632) 338-1231



COMPREHENSIVE CORPORATE DISCLOSURE

a. Copies of all agreements duly executed that are relevant to the transaction

Masrickstar Corporation (“Masrickstar”), Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
(“Alphaland Holdings”), Boerstar Corporation (“Boerstar”) and Azurestar Corporation
(“Azurestar”) (collectively referred to as the “Shareholders”) discussed and agreed as a
matter of principle that the deposits of approximately PHP4,081,502,649.51 that was
being provided to Alphaland Corporation (the “Company”) would subsequently be
converted into shares. Thus, the conversion of the advances into common shares is
merely fulfilling what had been agreed upon amongst the Shareholders.

A total of Four Hundred Eight Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand Two Hundred
Sixty Four (408,150,264) shares in favor of the Shareholders of the Company will be
issued at the same subscription price of Ten Pesos (Php10.00) per share payable through
the conversion of previously made deposits as follows:

Deposits for
Future
Subscription New Shares
Shareholders (in Php) Issued

Masrickstar Corporation (“Masrickstar”) 1,000,000,000.00 100,000,000
Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“ Alphaland
Holdings”) 2,591,722,331.74 259,172,233
Boerstar Corporation (“Boerstar”) 408,150,264.97 40,815,026
Azurestar Corporation (“Azurestar”) 81,630,052.80 8,163,005
Total 4,081,502,649.51 408,150,264

The appropriate Deeds of Subscription with each of the foregoing Shareholders will be
executed upon compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (including
shareholder approval of the issuance).

b. Nature and description of the proposed transaction

The transaction is a simple issuance of shares in favor of the Shareholders in
consideration of the deposits for future subscription previously made by them in favor of
the Company. The shares were issued at a subscription price of Php10.00 per share. The
new shares will eventually be subject of an additional listing application with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (the “Exchange”). However, the issuances are not yet final as
of the date of this disclosure as the Company will seek the approval and ratification of its
stockholders during the annual stockholders” meeting to be held this May 2011. The
Shareholders understand that among the conditions that may be imposed by the
Exchange on their listing application would be a lock-up period of 180 days.



c. Reason and purpose of the transaction including the benefits which are expected
to be accrued to the listed issuer as a result of the transaction

The issuances of new shares to the Shareholders have permanently erased any potential
liability of the Company of having to pay back the Shareholders for infusing the cash
into the Company.

d. The aggregate value of the consideration

The 408,150,264 shares will be issued in consideration for all of the PHP4,081,502,649.51
worth of deposits for future subscription made by the Shareholders in favor the
Company.

e. The basis upon which the consideration was determined

The issue price for the new shares of the company is £10.00 per share. The Company and
the Shareholders decided to use the issue price previously agreed upon by them last
November 2009, when these Shareholders first became stockholders of the Company. At
that time, the Shareholders were already made aware of the need to infuse additional
capital into the Company to augment the Company's funding for its various projects.

f. Detailed work program of the application of the proceeds

The deposits for future subscription totaling PHP4,081,502,649.51 were made by the
Shareholders (in three tranches - July 2010, September 2010 and January 2011). Out of the
PHP4,081,502,649.51 in deposits for future subscription converted into common shares,
only Php1,933,683,223.78 were contributed in 2011. The deposits were used or will be
used by the Company to augment general corporate requirements and the funding of its
various projects, namely:

1. Alphaland Southgate Tower and Mall

2. Alphaland Makati Place (including The City Club)
3. Alphaland Makati Tower

4. Alphaland Bay City (including the Marina Club)
5. Alphaland Balesin Island Club

6. Boracay Gateway Country Club

7. Shangri-la at the Fort

8. Alphaland Heavy Equipment Corporation

g. Effectin the listed company before and after the transaction on the following:
* Capital structure of the Issuer before and after the transaction
The following table presents a tabular summary of the changes in the capital

structure of the Company upon obtaining the stockholders’ approval for the
issuances in the Annual Meeting to be held in May of this year:



Authorized Capital Stock £5,000,000,000.00 £5,000,000,000.00
Capital Stock 5,000,000,000 shares 5,000,000,000 shares
Subscribed (with full 1,576,595,987 shares 1,984,746,251 shares
voting rights, inclusive of

treasury)

Issued Shares (fully-paid 1,429,220,287 shares 1,837,370,551 shares
and certificated, inclusive

of treasury)

Treasury 423,900 shares 423,900 shares
Outstanding (Subscribed 1,576,172,087 shares 1,984,322,351 shares
Shares, exclusive of

treasury)

Par Value per share £21.00 £21.00

Masrickstar Corporation 609,472,340 | 42.66% 709,472,340 35.75%
Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) Pte.

Ltd. 507,893,616 | 35.55% 767,065,849 | 38.66%
Boerstar Corporation 126,973,404 8.89% 167,788,430 8.46%
RVO Capital Ventures Corporation 142,656,748 9.98% 142,656,748 7.19%
Azurestar Corporation 25,394,681 1.78% 33,557,686 1.69%
D.M. Wenceslao & Associates, Inc. 147,375,700 9.35% 147,375,700 7.43%
Public 16,405,598 1.15% 16,405,598 0.83%
Total Shares Subscribed 1,576,172,087 | 100.00% | 1,984,322,351 | 100.00%

h. Additional information on Shareholders

Attached with this disclosure are the following:

Annex “A”
Annex “B”

Annex “C”
Annex “D”
Annex “E”
Annex “F”
Annex “G”
Annex “H”

Background of the Shareholders
Memorandum of Memorandum and Articles of Association
of Alphaland Singapore
Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of Masrickstar
Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of Boerstar
Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of Azurestar
Audited Financial Statements of Masrickstar
Audited Financial Statements of Boerstar
Audited Financial Statements of Azurestar



i. The interest which directors to the parties to the transaction have in the
transaction

Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) is an existing shareholder of the Company, owning
35.55% of the current outstanding capital stock of the Company. One of its directors, Mr.
Craig Webster, is also a director of the Company.

Masrickstar is an existing shareholder of the Company, owning 42.66% of the current
outstanding capital stock of the Company.

Boerstar is an existing shareholder of the Company, owning 8.89% of the current
outstanding capital stock of the Company.

Azurestar is an existing shareholder of the Company, owning 1.78% of the current
outstanding capital stock of the Company.

jo Statement as to the steps to be taken to safeguard the interests of the shareholders

As disclosed, the Company will seek stockholders” approval for the transaction during
the annual shareholders” meeting this coming May 2011.

k. Other relevant information

The new shares to be issued will not form part of the proposed follow-on offering to the
public (the "Follow On Offering") which will take place sometime in the 3rd quarter of
2011 or at the appropriate time as may be determined by the Company’s management.
To be clear, it is the intention of management to include only primary shares (out of the
Company's authorized but unissued capital) in the Follow On Offering.

Aside from the foregoing, the Company has no other relevant information to disclose at
this time.



Annex “A” : Background of the Shareholders

Masrickstar Corporation

Masrickstar Corporation Percentage of Ownership before
17t Floor Tower 1 The Enterprise Center the transaction:
6766 Ayala Avenue, Makati City 42.66%

Nature of | Masrickstar Corporation is a Philippine holding company which currently only
Business: has investments in the Company.

Capital Authorized Capital Stock : £120,000,000.00
Structure: Issued and Subscribed Capital ;120,000,000 shares
Paid Up Capital Stock ;120,000,000 shares
Par Value per Share : £1.00
Ownership | Rayas Equity Development : 71,999,997 shares
Structure: | Corporation
Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) : 47,999,998 shares
Pte. Ltd.
Roberto V. Ongpin :  1share
Eric O. Recto : 1share
Mario A. Oreta : 1share
Craig Webster :  2shares

Nature of | Other than being a shareholder, Masrickstar does not have any other
Dealings/af | dealing/affiliation with the Company

filiation
with  the
Company




Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Registered Office: 8 Cross Street, #11-00 PWC

Percentage of Ownership before
the transaction:

Building, Singapore 048424 35.55%
Nature of | Other Investment Holding Companies.
Business:
Capital Currency Singapore Dollars
Structure: Class of Share Ordinary Preference Class A
Number of share - - 1
Issued Share - - 1.00
Capital
Paid-up Share - - 1.00
Capital
Currency United States Dollars
Class of Share Ordinary Preference Class B
Number of share 1 58,951,333 2
Issued Share 1.00 58,951,333.00 8,000,000.00
Capital
Paid-up Share 1.00 58,951,333.00 8,000,000.00
Capital
Ownership | Ashmore Cayman SPC Limited for and | Currency : United States Dollars
Structure: | on behalf of the Alphaland Segregated | 1 Ordinary share

Portfolio

58,951,333 preference shares

Ashmore Global Special Situations
Fund 3 Limited Partnership

1 Class A share

1 Class B Share

Currency : Singapore Dollars

Currency : United States Dollars

Ashmore Holder PCC No 2 Limited Re
Ashmore Asian Recovery Fund

1 Class B Share

Currency : United States Dollars

Nature of
Dealings/af
filiation
with the
Company

Other than being a shareholder, Alphaland Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. does
not have any other dealing/affiliation with the Company.




Boerstar Corporation

Boestar Corporation Percentage of Ownership
17t Floor Tower 1 The Enterprise Center before the transaction:
6766 Ayala Avenue, Makati City 8.89%
Nature of Business: Boestar Corporation is a holding company which currently has
significant investments in ISM Communications Corporation
and Atok-Big Wedge Co., Inc. (which are both listed with the
PSE).
Capital Structure: Authorized Capital Stock . £1,000,000.00
Issued and Subscribed Capital ;250,000 shares
Paid Up Capital Stock 1 62,500 shares
Par Value per Share : £1.00
Ownership Structure : G.A.M.E. Equities : 224 995 shares
Rumber Corporation ;39,706 shares
Josephine A. Manalo : 1 share
Ma. Lourdes A. Torres : 1 share
Brinia A. Flojemon : 1 share
Ma. Theresa S. Aguiling : 1 share
Eduveges O. Batalan : 1 share
Nature of Dealings/affiliation | Other than being a shareholder, Boerstar does not have any
with the Company other dealing/affiliation with the Company




Azurestar Corporation

Azurestar Corporation

Percentage of Ownership

17t Floor Tower 1 The Enterprise Center before the transaction:
6766 Ayala Avenue, Makati City 1.78%

Nature of Business:

Azurestar Corporation is a holding company which currently has
significant investments in other corporations.

Capital Structure: Authorized Capital Stock . £10,000,000.00
Issued and Subscribed Capital ;2,500,000 shares
Paid Up Capital Stock 1 625,000 shares
Par Value per Share . R1.00
Ownership Structure : Ma. Lourdes A. Torres ;2,499,996 shares
Brinia A. Flojemon :  1share
Maria Theresa S. Aguiling :  1share
Eufrocina L. Henson : 1 share
Eduveges O. Batalan :  1share

Nature of
Dealings/affiliation with
the Company

Other than being a shareholder, Azurestar does not have any other
dealing/ affiliation with the Company




: AN NEX “ oo 6

)

FOREIGN SERVICE OF THE
REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES

ASSY OF THE PHILIPPINES )
Consular Section ) S.8.
- Singapore )

- CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

REICHEL P. QUINONES, Vice Consul of the Republic of

bPines, Singapore, duly commissioned and qualified, do hereby certify that
____ CHEN WEN WOAN ANGELA B

pm the annexed instrument has been executed to wit!
IED TRUE COPY OF MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
TION OF ALPHALAND HOLDINGS (SINGSPAPORE) PTE LIMITED
PORATED ON 05 MARCH 2007 - : _

® he/she signed the same A.Notary FUbﬁ;q In §ingapqre . and that

ite affikedthereto is genuine.
umes:norésponsibility for the contents of the annexed document.

EOF. | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Embassy of
Singapore, this _ _dayof __ 29Apr10

REICHEL P. QUINONES




shall come, 1,
CHEN WEN WOAN ANGELA Notary Pubhc, duly authorised
residing and practising at Singapore in the Republic of Singapore, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY AND ATTEST that the MEMORANDUM AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF ALPHALAND HOLDINGS
(SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED hereunto annexed is a true copy of the
Original Document of which it purports to be a copy, I having carefully
coliated and compared the said Copy with the said Original produced and
shown to me and found the same to agree therewith

IN FAITH AND TESTIMONY F

I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed
my Seal of Office at Singapore this 26th day of
April, Year Two thousand and ten (2010)

Quod Veritatem Attestor,

Qe

NOTARY PUBLIC
Singapore




| % o Company. 200703570N

THE COMPANIES ACT, CAP. 50 .

PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

MEMORANDUM
AND
ARTICLES.O'F ASSOCIATIDN
OF

ALPHALAND HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED

incorporated on the 5™ day of March 2007
(lncorporatmg amendments adopted by Special Resolution passed on 1 August 2008)

Lodged in the Office of the Accounting & Comorate Regulatoty Authority, Singapore




AGCOUNTING AND CORPORATE REGULATORY AUTHORITY -

(ACRA):

- Company No: 200703570N

CERTIFICATE CONFIRMING INCORPORATION OF COMPANY

 ‘This is to confirm that ALPHALAND HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED

iis incorporated under the Companies Act (Cap 50), on and from
85/03/2007 and that the company is a PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY
SHARES.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL ON 06/03/2007, .

MOHD SATFUL BIN AHMAD SININ
ST REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES | |
| Eﬁggmge AND CORPORATE REGULATORY AUTHORITY (ACRA)




THE COMPANIES ACT, CAP. 50

* PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
of

ALPHALAND HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED

The name of the Company is ALPHALAND HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LIMITED

The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the Republic of Singapore.

The liability of the members is limited. |

The Company shall have the power to increase, sub-divide, consolidate or reduce its capital
or to divide the shares forming the capital (increased or reduced) into several classes and to

. attach thereto respectivély preferential, deferred; special or qualified rights, privileges or
conditions as regards dividends, repayment of capital, voting o otherwise.




NAMES, ADDRESSES AND OGCUPATIONS, OF SUBSCRIBERS

WOO MAY POH-

476 Ang Mo Kio Avenue 10
#11-796

Singapore 560476

Corporate Secretarial Manager

Dated this 2™ day of March 2007

Witness to the abova signature:

(Wl
Certified Public Accountant
8 Cross Street

#11-00 PWC Building
Singapore 048424

K3
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THE COMPANIES ACT, CAP. 50

~ PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
of

ALPHALAND HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
(Adopted by Special Resolution passed on 1 August 2008)

PRELIMINARY

1. The regulations contained in Table "A" in the Fourth Schedule to the  Table "A" not
Companies Act, Cap. 50 shail .not apply to the Company, but the following shall,  to apply.
subject to repeal, addition and alteration as provided by the Act or these Articles, be

the regulations of the Company. ,

2. In these Articles, if not irconsistent with the subject or context, the words Interpretation.
standing in the first column of the Table hext hereinafter contained shall bear the
meanings set opposite to them respec‘ti_vely in the second colurnn thereof:

WORDS
the "Act”

these "Articles"
the "Company"

"Business Day”

MEANINGS

The Companies . Act, Cap. 50 or any statutory
modification, amendment or re-snactment thereof for
the time being in force or any and every other act for
the time being in force concérning companies and
affecting the Company and any teference to any
provision of the Act is to that provision as so
modified, amended or re-enacted or contained in
any such subsequent Companies Act.

These Articles of Association or other regulations of
the Company for the time being in force.

The abovenamed Company by whatever name from
time to time called.

Any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which
commercial banks are open for business in
Singapore. . -




"Class A Shareholder"

"Class A
Shares"

"Class B Shareholder”

"Class B Shares"

"Directors"

"Director"

“Distributable Profits"

"Dividend"
"Dividend Payment
Date"

" "electronic
communication”

"Member"
"Month"

"Office"”

A holder of a Class A Share.

The Class A shares in the share capital of the
Company carrying the rights and subject to the
restrictions set out in these Articles.

A holder of a Class B Share.

The Class B shares in the share capital of the
Company carrying the rights and subject to the
restrictions set out in these Articles.

The Directors for the time being of the Company or
such number of them as have authority to act for the
Company.

Includes any'person acting .as a Director of the
Company and includes any pérson duly appointed
and acting for the time being as an Alternate Director.

On any date of determination, the amount certified
by the auditors to be the profit available to the
Company for distribution as a dividend in
compliance with Section 403 of the Act in respéct of
the period to which the then most recent annual
audited profit and loss accounts relate.

includes bonus.

Such date(s) as may be fixed by the Directors for the
payment of a dividend.

Communication transmitted (whether from one (1)
person to another, from one (1) device to another,
from a person to a device or from a device to a
person):

(a) by means of a telecommunication system; or

(b) by other means but while in an electronic
form, :

such that it can (where particuiar conditiong are met)
be received in legible form or be made legible
following receipt in non-legible form.

A member of the Company.

Calendar month.

The Registered Office of the Company for the tim
being. '




“Ordinary Resolution”

“Ordinary Shareholdet" .

"Ordinary Shares"

"Paid Up" _

"Preference
Shareholders”

"Redeemable
Preference :Shares"

"Redeemed Shares™

"Redemptidn Amount™

"Redemption Date"
"Redemption Notice"
"Register”

"Seal"

"Secretary”

“Singapore"

"Special Resolution”

A resolution not being a Special Resolution which is,
of which is to be, passed by a majority of Members
as, being entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy
at a General Meeting, :

A holder of an Ordinary Share.

. The ordinary shares in the share capital of the

Company carrying the rights, privileges, banefits and
subject to the restrictions set out in thése Articles,

includes credited as paid up.

The registered holders of the Redeemable
Preference Shares, and "Preference Shareholder"
means any ona of them.

The redeermable preference shares in the capital of
the Company carrying the rights, privileges and
benefits set out in these Articles.

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 6B(1)(c)(i).

In relation {o a Redeemable Preferénce Share, on
any date of determination, an amount equivalent to
the aggregate of any and all distributions of income
or capital, including without limitation, all
Distributable = Profits, which the Company s
permitted to distribute to its shareholders under law
and which is approved by the Directors for
distribution, divided by the totai number of
Redeemable Preference Shares issued and
outstanding;

Has the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 6B(1){c)i).
Has the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 6B{1)}(c)(i).
The Register of Members.

The Common Seal of the Company or in appropriate
cases the Official Seal or duplicate Common Seal.

The Secretary or Secretaries appointed under these
Articles and shall include any person entitled .to
perform the duties of Secrétary temporarily.

The Republic of Singapore. ‘

Has the meaning given in Section 184 of the Act.




“esecommunication
sostem”

“reasury share"

55"

“JS%" and "US Dollars" ..

“Writing" and “Written”

Year"

versa.

Has the meaning as in the Telecommunications Act
(Chapter 323) or any statutory modification,
amendment or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force.

Has the meaning given in Section 4 of the Act.

The lawful currency from time to time of the Republic
of Singapore.

The lawful currency from time to time of the United
States of America.

Includes printing, lithography, typewriting and any
other mode of representing or reproducing words in a
visibte form, including electronic communication.

Calendar Year.

Words denoting the singular number only shall include the plural and vice

Words denoting the masculine gender only shall include the feminine gender.

Words denoting persons shall include corporations.

Save as aforesaid, any word or expression used in the Act and the
interpretation Act, Cap. 1 shall, if not inconsistent with the subject or context, bear the

same meaning in these Anticles.

The headnotes and marginal notes are inserted for convenience only and shalt

not affect the construction of these Articles.




BUSINESS

3 Subject to the provisions of the Act, any branch or kind of business may be
undertaken by the Directors at such time or times as they shall think fit, and further may
be suffered by them to be in abeyance, whether such branch or kind of business may
have been actually commenced or rot, so long as the Directors may deem it expedient
not to commence or proceed with such branch or kind of business.

PRIVATE COMPANY
4. The Company is a private company, and accordingly:

{a) the number of the Members of the Company (net including persons
who are in the employment of the Company or of its subsidiary and
persons who having been formerly in the employment of the Company
or of its subsidiary were while in the employment anhd have continued
after the determination of that employment to be Members of the
Company) shall be limited to fifty Provided that for the purposes of this
provision where two (2) or more persons hoid one (1) or more shares
in the Company jointly they shall be treated as a single Member; and

{e)] -the right to transfer the shares of the Company shall be restricted in
the manner hereinafter appéaring.

SHARES

5. Except as is otherwise expressly permitted by the Act, the Company shall not
give, whether directly or indirectly and whether by means of the making of a loan, the
giving of a guarantee, the provision of security, the release of an obligation or the
release of a debt or otherwise, any financial assistance for the purpose of, or in
connection with, the acquisition or proposed acquisition of shares or units of shares in
the Company or its hoiding company.

6. Save as provided by Section 161 of the Act, no shares may be issued by the
Directors without the prior apptoval of the Company in General Mesting but subject
thereto and to the provisions of these Articles, the Directors may allot or grant options
over or otherwise dispose of the same to such persons on such terms and conditions
and at such time as the Company in General Meeting may approve.

6A(1). The Company may allot and issue the Class A Shares, at such issue price
and on such terms and conditions as the Directors may determine, which shall carry
the same rights, benefits and privileges and shall rank pari passu for participation of
the profits and assets of the Company and in all other respects with the Class B
Shares and issued in consideration of the payment of subscription monies
denominated in 8$. ‘

BA(2). The Company may allot and issue the Class B Shares, at such issue price
and on such terms and conditions as the Directors may determine, which shall carry
the same rights, benefits and privileges and shall rank pari passu for participation of
the profits and assets of the Company and in all other respects with the Class A
Shares and issued in consideration of the payment of subscription monies
denominated in USS$.

Any branch or kind
of business may’
be undertaken by
Directors.

Limited number
of members and
restrictions on the
transfer of shares.

Prohibition of
dealing in its
own shares.

Issue of Shares.

Class A Shares,
Class B Shares
and Ordinary
Shares,




.BA(3).- The Company may allot and issue the Ordinary Shares, at such issue price
“and on such terms and conditions as the Directors may determine, which shall carry
-the rights, benefits and privileges as set out in these Articles and shall rank in priority
o the Class A Shares and the Class B Shares on 4 return of capital, by or on
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company (other than upon a rédemption
.of the Redeemable Preference Shares or pursuant to a purchase of shares by the
‘Company) and issued in consideration of the payment of subscription monies
-denominated in US$. ' :

.6A(4). Capital

-On a return of capital by, or on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of, the Company

-or otherwise (but not on redémption: of the Redeemable Preference Shares or
‘pursuant to a purchase of shares by the Company), the assets of the Company
-available for distribution among its Members shall be applied as follows:

(a) first, in paying to the Ordinary Sharehalders, pari passu as between
themselves in respect of each Ordinary Share which is fully Paid Up,
US$1 for every US$100,000,000,000 of capital available for
distribution;

(b) second, in paying to the Class A Shareholdars and the Class B
Shareholders, pari passu as between themselves in respect of each
Class A Share and Class B Share which is fully Paid Up, US$1 for
every US$100,000,000,000 of capital available for distribution; and

(¢) thereafter, the surplus of such assets and profits shall be distributed
in accordance with the provisions of Article 6B(1)(b).

BA(5). Dividends

The Class A Shareholders, Class B Shareholders and Ordinary Shareholders
shall not be éntitled to any dividend or distribution in any form, whether
pursuant to these Articles or otheiwise,

BA(6). Voling

(a) The Class A Shares shall carry no voting rights and the Class A
Shareholders shall not be entitied to receive notice of or attend any
General Meeting of the Company, unless:

(i) preferential dividend (if any) or any part thereof due on the
Class A Shares remains in arrear and unpaid for at least 12
motiths; .

(ii) the resolution in question varies the rights attachéd to the
Class A Shares; or

{iii the resolution in question is for the winding up of the
- Company.




BA(7).

(b The Class B Shares shall carry no voting rights and the Class B
Shareholders shall not be entitled to receive notice of or attend any
General Meeting of the Company, unless:

{i) preferential dividend (if any) or any part thereof due on the
Class B Shares remains in arrear and unpaid for at least 12
months;

(ii) the resolution in question varies the rights attached to the
~ Class B Shares; or '

{iii) the resolution in gquestion is for the winding up of the
Company.

(c) Each Ordinary Share shall confer on the holder thereof the right to
receive notice of and 1o attend and vote at a General Meeting of the
Company. ' :

(d) Where an Ordinary Shareholder is entitled to vote on any resolution,
then at the relevant General Mesting of class meeting, on a show of
hands, every Ordinary Shareholder who is present in person ot by
proxy or (being a corporation) by a duly authorised representative
shall have one vote and on a poll every Ordinary Shareholder who is
present in person or by proxy or attorney or (being a corporation) by
a duly authorised representative shall have one vote for each
Ordinary Share hsld, '

{e) Where a holder of Class A Shares is entitled to vote on any
resolution, then at the relevant General Meeting or class meeting, on
a show of hands, every holder of Class A Shares who is prasent in
person or by proxy ot (being a corporation) by a duly authorised
representative shall have one vote and on a poll every holder of
Class A Shares who is present in person or by proxy or attorney or
(being a corporation) by a duly authorised representative shall have
one vote for each Class A Share hald. :

N Where a holder of Class B Shares is entitled to vote on any
resolution, ther &t the relevant General Meeting or class meeting, on
a show of hands, every holder of Class B Shares who is present in
person or by proxy or (béing a corporation) by a duly authorised
representative shall have one vote and on a poll every holder of
‘Class B Shares who is present in person or by proxy or attomey or
{being 2 corporation) by a duly authorised representative shall have
one vote for each Class B Share held.

Transfer
(a) Subject to Article 6A(10) and sub-paragraphs (b} and (c) below, no

Class A Shareholder or Class B Shareholder may transfer all or any
of his Class A Shares or Class B Shares in any circumstance.




BA(8).

(b} The Company shali, at any time by written notice to the Class A
Shareholders or Class B Shargholders, be entitled to direct all the
Class A Shareholders or Class B Shareholders to transfer their Class
A Shares or, as the case may be, Class B Shares to a party
specified by the Company at a price of US$1 in aggregate for all of
the Class A Shares or, as the case may be, the Class B Shares,
. payable to the Class A Shareholders and Class B Shareholders on a
pro rata basis.

{c) To give effect to the transfer required pursuant to sub-paragraph (b)
above, the Company may appoint any person to execute a form(s) of
transfer on behalf of each holder of the Class A Shares or, as the
case may be, the Class B Shares in favour of such third party.
Payment of all and any amounts due in respect of the Class A
Shares ot, as the case may be, the Class B Shares shall be made
within twenty-one (21) days of the date of the transfer of such Class
A Shares or, as the case may be, Class 8 Shares to the third party.

Meetings of Class A Shareholders

Subject to applicable taws, one (1) Class A Shareholder shall constitute the
quorum at a meeting of the Class A Shareholders. The provisions of these
Articles relating to General Meetings, notice of and proceedings at General
Meetings and votes of Members shall (subject to and except to the extent

"inconsistent with this Article 6A) apply mutalis mutandis to any separate

BA(9).

6A(10).

ciass meeting of thé Class A Shareholders.

Meetings of Class B Shatehoiders

Subject to applicable laws, one (1) Class B Shareholder shall constitute the
quorum at a meeting of the Class B Shareholders. The provisions of these
Articles relating to General Meetings, notice of and proceedings at Genetal
Mestings and votes of Memberts shall (subject to and except to the extent
inconsistent to this Article 6A) apply mutalis mutandis to any separate class
meetings of the Class B Shareholders.

No Variation of Rights

Notwithstanding Article 9, the issue by the Company of shares which rank in

any respect pari passu with, in priority to or with preferted rights to the Class.

A Shares andfor the Class B Shares and/or the Ordinary Shares shall not be
deemed to constitute a variation or abrogation of the rights attached to the
Class A Shares andfor the Class B Shares and/or the Ordinary Shares, as
the case may be.

- BA(11). The Class A Shares and Class B Shares shall be in registered form and the

Company shall maintain a Register of Class A Shares and Register of Class
B Shares respectively.




€B(1). The Company may allot and issue the Redeemable Preference Shares, at
such issue price and on such terms and conditions as the Directors may determine,
which shall carty the foilowung rights, benefits and privileges and be subject to the
following provislons:

(a) . Dividend

(i) the Preference Shareholders shall be entitled to all dividends
which may be déclared by the Company from time to time
out of the Distributable Profits in priority to any dividend or
distribution in favour of holders of any other classes of
shares in the Company:

(i} ~  the entitement of the Preférence Shareholders are non-
’ cumulative such that where no dividends are declared then
no dividend shall accrue of become payable; and

(it} any dividends paid to the Preference Shareholders shall be
paid in US Dollars by either (aa) cheque drawt on a licensed
bank and despatched to the Preference Shareholders at
their respective addresses appearing in the Register of
Preference Shareholders, or (bb) by wire transfer of
immediately available funds, to an account specified by the
Preferencé Shareholder at least three (3) Business Days
prior to the Dividend Payment Date, together with any
relevent tax vouchers, if tax is deducted or withheld.

(b) Cagifal

On a return of capital by, or on liquidation of, the Compahy or
otherwise (but not on redemption of the Redeemable Preference
Shares or pursuant to a purchase of shares by the Company), the
assets of the Company available for distribution among the Members
of the Company shall be applied as follows:

f)] first, in paying to the Ordinary Shareholders any amounts
which may be due to them pursuant to Article BA(4);

() second, in paying to the Class A Shareholders and the Class
‘ B Shareholders any amounts which may be due to them
pursuant to Article 6A(4); and

(i} third, the balance of such assets and profits shall belong to
and be distributed among the Preference Shareholders.

{c) Redemption

(i) Subject to the satisfaction of all applicable provisions of the
Act and all other applicable laws and regulations, the
Company may in actordance with this Article 6B(1)(c)(i) and
on’ such terms and conditions as the Directors may

Redeemable

Preference
Shares.




(i)

determine, at any time redeem pro-rata amongst the
Preference Shareholders, in whole or in part, the
Redeemable Preference Shares which are issued and
outstanding and have not been previously redeemed and

~held by each Preference Shareholder by giving to such

Preference Shareholder notice (the "Redemption Notice")
of such redemption, which notice shalt be irrevocable. Every
Redemption Notice shall specify the date fixed for
redemption (which shall be a date (being a Business Day)
falling not later than ninety (90) days from the date of the
Redemption Notice (in respect of those Redeemable
Preference Shares to be redeemed, the “Redemption
Date")) and the number of Redeemable Preference Shares
proposed to be redeemed (the "R -

teceipt of a Redemption Notice from such Preference
Shareholder, the Company shall redeem the Redeemed
Shares of that Preference Shareholder on the Redemption
Date. The redemption of the Redeemed Shares under this
Article 6B(1)(c)(i) shall be at the Redemption Amount. Upon
redemption, such Redeemed Share shall be deemed to have

- been cancéiled.

On or before any date fixed for redemption of any
Redeemed Shares, each Prefersnce Sharehoider whose
Redeemable Preference Shares are to be redeemed shall
be bound to deliver to the Company the share certificates in
respect of those Redeemed Shares (or an appropriate form
of indemnity), in order that the same may be cancelled. On
the Redemption Date, the Commpany shall pay to &ach such
Prefererice Shareholder {or in the case of joint holders, to
the holder whose name stands first in the Register of
Preference Sharéholders) the Redemption Amount (such
payment to be made in US Dollars by either (aa) cheque
drawn on a licensed bank and despatched to each such
Preference Shareholder at their respective addresses
appearing in the Register of Preferance Shareholders, or

~ {bb) by wire transfer of immediately available funds, to an

account specified by the Preference Shareholder at least

three (3} Business Days prior to the Redemption Date,

together with any relevant tax vouchérs, if tax is deducted or
withheld).

(d)  Default in Payment or Partial Payment

if by reason of any provision of the Act, the Company is unable to
make - payment of any amount due in respect of the Redeemable
Preference Shares (whether in respect of dividends, the Redemption
Amount of othérwise) then the Company shall from time to time
(subject to the maximum amount and extent permitted by law, and
on the earliest date on which such payments may lawfully be made)
make payments on account of the amount so owing on a pro-rata




(e)

(f)

{g)

(h)

basis until such amount has been paid in full and such payments

- shall be applied in the following order: (i) firstly, in payment of all

dividends which have been declared but which remain unpaid, and
(i} secondly, in payment of any Redemiption Amounts which remain
unpaid as at the date of such payment.

Voting Rights
(i) Each Redeemable Preference Share shall confer on the

holder thereof the right to receive notice of, and fo aitend
and vote at a Generai Meeting of the Companhy.

(ii) Where the Preference Shareholders are entitied to vote on.

any resolution, then, at the relevant Genetal Meeting or
class meeting, on a show of hands every Preference
Shareholder who is prasent in person or by ptoxy ot attorney
or (beirg a corporation) by a duly authofised representative
shall have one vote and on a poll eévery Preferénce
Shareholder who is present in person or by proxy or attorney
or (being a corporation) by a duly authorised representative
shall have one vote for each Redeemable Preference Share
held. '

No Conversion Rights
The Redeemable Preference Shares ate non-conveitible.
Meetings

Subject to applicable laws, any two (2) Preference Shareholders
shall constitute. the quorum at and shall constituté a meeting of the
Preference Shareholders, or in the event there being only one (1)
Preference Shareholder, such Preference Shareholder or its duly
authorised representative shall constitute a quorum. The provisions
of these Articles relating to Genaral Meetings of thé Company, notice
of and proceédings dt General Meetings and votes of Members shall
(subject to and except to the extent inconsistent with this Article 6B)
apply ‘mutatis mutandis to any separate class meeting of the
Preference Shareholders.

her Redeemable Preterence Shares

Without prejudice to the generality of Article 6B(4) below, the issue
by the Company of shares which rank in any respect pari passu with,
or in priority to the Rédeemable Preference Shares, shall be deemed
to constitute a variation of the rights attached to the Redaemable
Preference Shares save that the creation or issue of additional
Redeemable Preference Shares shall not constitute 2 variation or
abrogation -of the rights attached to any éxisting Redeemable
Preference Shares.




(i

)

(k)

{n

Transfers, Registration and Replacement

The Redeemable Preference Shares will be in registered form and
the Company shall maintain a Register of Preference Shareholders.
‘The provisions of these Articles relating to the registration, transfer,
transmission, certificates and replacement théreof applicable to the
shares of the Company (other than Class A Shares and Class B
Shares) shall apply mutatis mutandis to the Redeemable Preference
Shares.

Substitution Securities

In the event of a winding-up or dissolution of the Company pursuant
to reconstruction, amalgamation, merger or consolidation then the
tesultant corporate entity responsible for the liabilities of the
Company with respect of the Redeemable Preference Shares shall
issue such securities in substitution and replacement of the
Redeemable Preference Shares and on such terms as shall be
approved by the Preference Shareholders and provided that the
terms of such securities in substitution are no less favourabile than
the terms of the Redeemabie Preference Shates. As a condition to
any such winding-up or disselution, the Company shall procure that
the resultant corporate entity shall (in favour of the Preference
Shateholders) undertake to comply with the provisions of Aricles
68(1) to 6B(6) (both inclusive).

Payinents

All payments or distributions with respect to the Redeemable
Preference Shares held jointly by two or more persons shall be paid

©or made to whichever of such persons is named first in the Register

of Preference Shareholdérs and the making of any payment. or
distribution in accordance with this Aticle 6B(1)(k) shall discharge
the liability of the Company in respect thereof.

Prescription

Any Preference Shareholder who has failed to claim dividends,
distributions of other property or rights within six (8) years of their
having been made available to him will not thereafter be able to
claim such dividends, distributions or othier property or rights which
shall' be forfeited and shail revert to the Company. The Company
shall retein such distributions or other property or rights but shall not
at any time be a trustee in respect of any dividends, distributions or
other propeity or rights rior be &ccountable for any income or other
benefits detived therefrom.




6B(2). All Redeemable Preference Shares shall be fully paid-up upon aliotment and
issue, : '

6B(3). The Company shall comply with the provisions of the Act relating to the
redemption of the Redeemable Preference Shares.

68(4). The Company shall not in any way vary. abrogate, devalue, diiute or
otherwise limit the rights of the Preference Shareholders as set out in these Articles
6B(1) to 6B(8) (both inclusive) without a Special Resolution of the Preference
Shareholders, passed In a separate class meeting of the Preference Shareholders.

8B(5). Any nofice or other document may be given by the Company to any
Preference Shareholder either personally or by sending it through the post in a
prepaid letter or by cable, telex, facsimile transmission, telegram or other tangible
and legible form of electronic or simitar form of communication addressed to such
Preference Shareholder at his address as appearing in the Register of Preference
.. Shareholders. All notices with respect to any Redeemable Preference Shares to
which persons are jointly entitied shall be given to whichever of such person is
named first in the Register of Preference Shareholders, and notice so given shall be
sufficient. notice to ali the holders of such Redeemable Preference Shares. Any
notice or other document, if sent by post, shall be deemed to have been served or
delivered at the time when the letter containing the same is posted, and in proving
such service it shall be sufficient to prove that the letter containing the notice or
: document was properly addressed and served by prepaid post. Any notice or other
. document, if served by cable, telex, facsimile transmission, telegram or other tangible
- and legible form of electronic or similar form of communication shall be deemed to
. have been served upon receipt théreof. Production of a copy of & nofice sent by
. telex, facsimile transmission or othet tangible and iegible form of electronic or similar
+ form of communication bearing an acknowledgement of successful transmission in
- accordance with normal procedures under the $ystem in use shall be sufficient proof
. of receipt thereof.

- 6B(6). In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this
Article 6B and the other provisions of these Articles, then (in favour of the Preference
- Shareholders) the provisions of this Articte 6B shall pravail.

- 7. The rights attached to shares issued upon special conditions shall be clearly
- defined in the Memorandum of Association or these Articles. Without prejudice to
* any spacial right previously conferred on the holders of any existing shares or class
_ of shares. but subject to the Act and these Articles, shares in the Company may be
~ issued by the Diractors and any such shares may be issuéd with such preferred,
- deferred, or other special rights of such restrictions, whether in regard to dividend,
- voting, return .of capital or otherwise as the Directors determine.

-8 If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes, the rights
. attached to any class (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of
© that class) may subject to the provisions of the Act, whether or not the Company is
being wound up, be varied or abrogated with the sanction of a Special Resolution
. passed at a separate General Meeting of the holders of shares of the class and to
. every such Special Resolution the provisions of Section 184 of the Act shall with such
. adaptations as aré necessary apply. To every such separate General Meeting the
. provisions of these Articles relating to General Mestings shall mutatis mutandis apply;

Special rights.

Variation of rights.




~ but so that the necessary quorum shall be two (2) persons (unless all the shares of the
class are held by one (1) person whereupen no quorum is applicable) at least holding
or representing by proxy or by attorney one-third of the issued shares of the class and
~ that any holder of shares of the class present in person or by proxy or by attorney may
. demand a poll Provided always that where the necessary majority for such a Special
Resolution is not obtained at the Meeting, consent in writing if obtained from the
holders of three-fourths of the issued shares of the class cohcerned, within two (2)
. months of the Meeting shall be as valid and effectual as a Special Resolution, carried
at the Meeting: ' _ o ‘ ‘

9. The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with
© preferred or other rights shail, unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of
~ issue of the shares of that class or by these Articles as are in force at the time of such
" issue, be deemed to bé varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking equally
. therewith.

10. The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions of brokerage
on any issue of shares at such rate or amount and in such manner as the Directors
‘may deem fit. Such commissions or brokerage may be satisfied by the payment of
cash or the aliotment of fully or partly paid shares or partly in one way and partly in the
- other. '

11 If any shares of the Company are issued for the purpose of raising meney to
. defray the expenses of the construction of any works or the provisions of any plant
~ which cannot be made profitable for a long period, the Company may, subject to the
- conditions and restrictions mentioned in the Act pay interest on so much of the share
capital as is for the time being paid up and may charge the same to capital as part of
the cost of the construction of provision.

12 Except as required by law, no pgrson shall be recognised by the Company as
holding any share upon any tfust and the Company shall not be bound by or compelled
~ in any way to recognise (even when having notice thereof) any equitable, contingent,

future or partial interest in any share or any intérast in any fractionial part of a share or
(except only as by these Articles or by law otherwise provided) any other rights in
respect of any share, except an absolute right to the entirety thereof in the registered
holder. : : '

13. If two (2) or more persons are registered as joint holders of any share any one
(1) of such persoris may give effectual receipts for any dividend payable in respect of
stich share and the joint holders of a share shall, subject to the provisions of the Act, be
severally as well as jointly liable for the payment of all instaiments and calls and
interest due In respect of such shares. Such joint holdérs shall be deemed to be one
(1) Member and the delivery of & certificate for a share to one (1) of several joint
holders shall be sufficient delivery to all such holders. _

14, No person shall be recognised by the Company as having title to 2 fractional
part of a share or otherwise than as the sole or a joint hoider of the entirety of such
share. ' ' .

15. If by the conditions of aliotment of any shares the whole or any part of the
amount of the issue price thereof shall be payable by instalments every such
instalment shall, when due, be paid to the Company by the person who for the time
being shall be the registered holder of the share or his personal representatives, but
this provision shall not affect the liability of any aliottee who may have agfeed to pay
the same
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. 18. The certificate of title to shares in the capital of the Company shall be issued
~ under the Seal In such form as the Directors shall from time to time prescribe and shall
. bear the autographic or facsimile signatures of at least one (1) Director and the
| Secretaty or some other person appointed by the Directors, and shall specify the
* number and class of shares to which it relates and the amounts paid thereon. The
. facsimile signatures may be reproduced by mechanical or other means provided the
" method or system of reproducing signatures has first been approved by the Auditors of
© the Company. : : :

17. Every person whose name is entered as a Member in the Register shail be
. entitled within two (2) months after allotment or within one (1) month after the
lodgement of any transfer to one (1) certificate for all his shares of any one (1) class or
. to several certificates in reasonable deriominations sach for a part of the share$ so

- allotted or transferred. Where a Mémber transfers part only of the shares comprised in

a certificate or where a Member requires the Company to cancel any certificate or
certificates and issue hew certificates for thé purposeé of subdividing his holding in a
- different manner the oid certificate or ceificates shall be cancelled and a new
cerificate or certificates for the balance of such shares issued in lieu thereof and the
Member shall pay a fee not éxceeding $2/- for each such new certificate as the
Directors may determine. '

18. If any certificate or other document of title to shares or debentures be worn out
or defaced, then upon production thereof to the Ditectors, they may order the same to
be cancelied and may issue a new cerificate in lieu thereof. For every certificate so
issued there shall be pelid to the Company the armount of the propér duty, if any, with

which such certificate is chargéable undeér any law for the time being in force relating to

stamps together with a further fee not éxceeding $2/- as the Directors may determine.
Subject to the provisions of the Act and the requirements of the Directors thereunder, if
any certificate or document be lost or destroyed or stolen, then upon proof thereof to
the satisfaction of the Directors and on such indemnity as the Directors deem adequate
being given, and on the payment of the amount of the proper duty with which such
certificate of document is chargeable under any law for the time being in force relating
to stamps together with a further fee not exceeding $2/- as the Directors may
determine, a new certificate or document in lieu thereof shall be given to the person
entitled to such lost or destroyed or stolen certificate or document.

RESTRICTION ON TRANSFER OF SHARES

19. Subject to the restrictions of these Articles, any Member may transfer all or any
of his shares, but every transfer must be in writing and in the usual common form, or in
any other form which the Directors may approve. The instrument of transfer of a share
shall be signed both by the transferor and by the transferee, and by the witness or
witnesses thereto and the transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of the share
unti! the name of the transferee is entered in the Register in respect theréof. Shares of
different classes shail not be comprised in the same instrument of transfer,

20. All instruments of transfer which shall be registered shall be retained by the
Company, but any instrument of transfer which the Directors may refuse to register
shall (except in any case of fraud) be retumed to the party presenting the same.
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21. No share shall in any circumstances be transferred to any infant or bankrupt or
person of unsound mind.

22, The Directors may, in their absolute discretion, decline to register any transfer
of shares on which the Company has a lien or to a petson of whom they do not
approve but shall in such event, within one (1) month after the date on which the
transfer was lodged with the Company, send to the transferor and transferee notice of
the refusal. If the Diractors refuse to register a transfer they shall within one (1) month
of the date of application for the transfer by noticé in writing to the applicant state the
facts which are considered to justify the refusal to register the transfer.

23. The Directors may decline to register any instrument of transfer unless:

{a) such fee hot exceeding $2/- or such other sum as the Directors may
from time to time réquire under the provisions of these Articles, is paid
to the Corripany in réspect thereof, and "

{b) the instrurnént of transfer is deposited at the Office or at such other
place (if any) as the Directors may appoint accompanied by the
certificates of the shares to which it relates and such other evidence
as the Directors may reasonably require to show the right of the
‘trangferor to make the transfer and, if the instrument of transfer is
executed by some other person on his behalf, the authority of the
person so to do.

24, The Company shall provide a‘ book to be called "Register of Transfers" which
shall be kept under the control of the Directors, and in which shall be entered the
particulars of every transfér of shares.

25. The Register may be closed at such times and for such periods as the

Directors may from time to time determing not excaeding in the whole thirty days in any
year.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

26. In case of the death of a Member, the survivor or survivors, where the
deceased was a joint holder, and the éxecutors or administrators of the deceased,
where he was a sole or only surviving holder, shall be the only persons recoghised by
the Company as having any title to his interest in the shares, but nothing herein shall
release the estate of a deceased Member (wheéther sole or joint) from any liability in
respect of any share held by him.

27, Any person becoming entitled to a share in conseéguence of the death or
bankruptcy of ahy Member riay, upoh producing such evidence of title as the Directors
shall require, bé registered himsalf as holder of the share upon giving to the Company
notice in writing of such desire or transfer such share to some other person. If the
person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered himself, he shall déliver or
send to the Company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects. If he
shail elect to have another person registered he shall testify his election by exacuting to
thal person a transfer of the share. All the fimitations, restrictions and provisions of
these Aricles relating to the right to transfer and the registration of transfers shall be
applicable to any such notice or trarisfer as aforesaid as if the death ot bankruptcy of
the Membet had not occurted and thé notice or transfer were a transfer executed by
such Member
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28, Save as otherwise provided by or in accordance with these Articles a person
becoming entitied to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of 2 Member
shall be entitied to the same dividends and other advantages to which he wouid be
entitled if he were the registered holder of the share except that he shall not be entitied
in respect thereof to exercise any right confetred by membership in relation to Meetings
of the Company until he shall have been registered as a Member in respect of the
share.

29. There shall be paid to the Company in respect of the registration of any
probate, letters of administration, certificate of marfiage or death, power of attorney or
other docurhent relating to or affecting the title to any shares, such fee not exceeding
$2/- as the Directors may from time to time réqguire or prascribe.

CALLS ON SHARES

30. The Directors may from time to time make such calls as they think fit upon the
Memibers in respect of any moneys unpaid on their shares and not by the terms of the
issue thereof made payable at fixed times, and each Member shall (subject to receiving
at least fourteen days' notice specifying the time or times and place of payment) pay to
the Company- at the time or times and place so specified the amourd called on his
shares. A call may be revoked or postponad as the Directors may détermine.

. A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of
the Directors authorising the call was passed and may be made payable by
instalments.

32. if a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed
for payment theract, the persoh from whom the sum is due shall pay interest on the
sum due from the day appointed for payment thereof to the time of actual payment at
such rate not exceeding ten per cant. (10%) per annum as the Directors determine, but
the Directors shall be at liberty to waive payment of such intérest wholiy or in part.

33 Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share becomes payable upon
allotment or at any fixed date, shall for all purposés of these Articles be deemied to be a
call duly made and payable on the date, on which, by the terms of issue, the same
* becomes payable, and in ¢ase of non-payment all the relevant provisions of the Articles

- as to payment of interest and éxpenses, forfeiture or otherwise shait apply as if such
sum had become payable by virtue of &4 call duly rmade and notified.

34.  The Directors may on the issue of shares differentiate between the holders as
to the amount of calls.io be paid and the times of payments.

35. The Directors may, if they think fit, receive from any Member willing to advance
the same all or any part of the moneys uncalled and unpaid upon the shares held by
him and such paymients in advance of calls shall extinguish, so far as the same chall
extend, the Hability upon the shares in respect of which it is made, and upon the
moneys so received or So much thereof as from time to time exceeds the amourit of the
calls then made upon the shares:concerned the Company may pay interest -at such
rate not exceeding ten per cent. (10%) per annum as the Member paying such sur
and the Directors agree upon.
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FORFEITURE AND LIEN

36. If any Member fails to pay in full any call or instalment of a call on the day
appointed for payment thereof, the Directors may at any time thereafter serve a notice
on such Member requiting payment of so much of the call or instalment as is unpaid
together with any interest and expenses which may have accrued.

a7, The notice shall name a further day (not being less than fourteen days from the
date of service of the notice) ofi or before which and the place where the payment
required by the notice is to be made, and shall gtate that in the event of non-payrnent in
accordance therewith the sharés on which the call was made will be liable to be
forfeitéd.

38. If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any
share in respect of which suth notice has been given may at any time thereafter,
before payment of all calls and interest and expenses due in respéct thereof be
forfeited by a resolution of the Directors to that effect. Such forfeiture shall include all
dividends declared in respect of the forfeited share and not actually paid before the
foifeiture, The Dlrectors may accept a surrender of any share liable to be forfeited
hereunder,

39 A share $o forfeited or surrendered shall become the property of the Company
and may be sold, re-allotted vr othelwise disposed of eithér to the person who was

before such forfeiture or surrender the holder theteof or entitied thereto, or to any other.

person, upon such terms and in such manner as the Diréctors shall think fit, and at any
time before a sale, re-allotment or disposition the forfeiture of surrender may be
cancelled on such terms a8 the Ditectors think fit. To give effect to any such sale, the
Directors may, if necessary, authotise some person to transfer a forfeited or
surrendered share to gny such person as aforesaid.

40, A Member whose shares have been forfeited or surrendered shall cease to be
a Mernber in respect of the sharés, but shall notwithstanding the forfeiture or surrender
remain liable to pay to theé Company all moneys which at the date of forfeiture or
surrender were payable by him to the Company in respect of the shares with inférest
thereon at ten per cént. (10%) per annum (or Such lower rate as the Directors may
approve) from the date of forfeiture or sutrender until payment, but such liabllity shall
cease if and when the Company receives payment in full of all such money in respect
of the shares and the Dlrectors may waive payment of such interest elther wholly or in
part.

41, The Company shall have a first and paramount lien and charge on every share
{not being a fully paid share) registered in the name of @ach Member (whether solely or
jointly with others) and on the dividénds deciared or payable in respect thergof for ali
calls and instaiments due on any such share and interest and expenses thereon but
such lien shall only be upon the specific shares in respect of which such cails or
instalments are due and unpaid and on all dividends from time to timé declared in
respect of the shareés. The Directors may resolve that any share shall for some
specified period be exetnpt from the provisions of this Article.

42. The Company may sell in such manner as the Directors think fit any share on
which the Company has a lien, but no sale shall be made unless soime sum in réspect
of which the lien exists is presently payable nor until the expiration of fourteen days
after notice in writing stating and demanding payment of the sum payable and giving
notce of intention to sell in defauk. shall have beeén given to the registered holder for

e tme being of the share or the person entitied thereto by reason of his death or
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bankruptcy. To give effect to any such sale, the Directors may authorise some person
- to transfer the shares sold to the purchaser thereof.

43. The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the Company and applied in
payment of such part of the amount in respect of which the lign exists as is presently
payable and the residue, if any, shall (subject to a like lien for sums not presently
payable as existed upon the shares before the sale) be paid to the person entitled to
the shares al the date of the sale. o

44, A statutory declaration in writing that the declarant is a Director of the
Company and that a share has been duly forfeited or surrendered or sold to satisfy a
lien of the Company on a date stated in the dectaration shall be conclusive evidence of
the facts stated therein as against ali persons claiming to be entitied to the share, and
such declaration and the receipt of the Company for the consideration (if any) given for
the share on the sale, fe-allotment or disposal thereof togsther with the certificate of
proprietorship of the share under Seal delivered to a purchaser or allottee thereof shall
(subject to the execution of a transfer if the same be required) constitute a good title to
the share and the person to whom the share is sold, re-gliotted of disposed of shall be
registered as the holder of the share and shall not be bound to see to the application of
the purchase money (if any) nor shall his title to the share be affected by any
irragularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the forfeiture, surrender, sale,
re-aliotment or disposal of the share. -

ALTERATION OF CAF;ITAL

45, The Company in General Meeting may from time to time by Ordinary
Resolution increase its capital by the allotment and issue of new shares.

46. Subject to any special rights for the time being attached to any existing class of
shares, the new shareés shall be issued upon such terms and conditions and with such
rights and privileges annexed thereto as the General Meeting resolving upon the
creation thereof shall direct and if no direction be given as the Directors shall determine
subject to the provisions of these Articles and in particular (but without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing) such shares may be issued with a preferential or ualfied
fight to dividends and in the distribution of assets of the Company or otherwise.

47. Unless otherwise determined by the Company in General Mesting any original
shares for the time being unissuéd and any new shares from time fo time to be created
shall before issue be offered in the first instance to all the then holders of any class of
shares in proportion as néarly as may be to the amount of capital held by them. In
offering such shares in the first instance to ali the then holders of any class of shares
the offer shall be made by notice specifying the number of shares offered and limiting
the time within which the offer if not accepted will be deemed to be declined and after
the expiration of that time of on the recéipt of an intimation from the person to whom
the offer is made that he declines to accept the shares offered, the Directors may
dispose of those shares in such manner as theéy think most béneficial to the Company
and the Directors may dispose of or not issue any such shares which by reason of the
proportion borne by them to the number of holders entitled to any such offer or by
reason of any other difficulty in apportioniig thé same cannot, in the opinion of the
Directors, be cohvenieéntly offered under this Article. ‘
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48. Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by these
Articles all new shares shall be subject to the provisions of these Articles with reference
to allotments, payment of calls, iien, transfer, transmission, forfeiture and otherwise,

49, The Company may by Ordinary Resolution:
(a) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital,

(=)} cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution,
have been forfeited and diminish the amount of its share capital by the
number of shares so cahcelled;

{c) subdivide its shares or any of them (subject nevertheless to the
provisions of the Act) provided always that in such subdivision the
proportion betwesn the amount paid and the amount (if any) unpaid on
-each reduced share shall be the same as it was in the case of the
share from which the reduced share is derived; and

(d) subject to the provisions of these Articles and the Act, convert any
class of shares int6 any other class of shares.
50. {(a) The Company may by Special Resolution feduce its share capital in
any manner and with and subject to any incident authorised and.
consent required by law,

(b) Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the
Company may authorise the Directors in General Megting to purchase
or othérwise acquire ordinary shares issued by it on such termns as the

Company may think fit and in the manner prescribed by the Act. All-

shares purchased by the Company other than thosg shares that are to
be held in treasuty in accordance with the provigions of these Articles
and the Act shall be cancelled. :

51. Shares that the Company purchases or otherwise acquires may be held as
. treasury shares in accordance with the provisions of these Articles and the Act.

. 52, Where the shares purchased or otherwise acquired are held as treasury
. shares by the Company, the Compéany shall be eéntered in the Register as the
Member holding the shares.

53, The Company shall not exercise any right in respect of the treasury shares
- other than as provided by the Act. Subject thereto, the Company may hold or deal
- with its treasury shares in the manner autherised by, or prescribed pursuant to, the
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55. The holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof in the same
manner and subject to the same Articles as and subject to which the shares from which
the stock arose might previously to conversion have been transfeérred or as near
thereto as circumstances admit but no stock shall be transferable except in such units
as the Directors may from time to time determine.

56. The holders of stock shall, according to the numbeér of stock units held by
them, have the same rights, privileges and advantages as regards dividend, return of
capital, voting and other matters, as if they held the shares from which the stock aroge;
but no such privilege or advantage (except as régards dividend and rétum of capital
and the assets on winding up) shall be conferred by any such aliquot part of stock
which would not if existing in shares have conferred that privilege or advantage; and no
such conversion shall affect or prejudice any preference or other special privileges
attached to the shares so converted.

57. Al such of the provisions of these Aricles as are applicable to paid up shares
shall apply to stock and the words “share" and "shareholder" or similat expressions
herein shall include "stock" or "stockholder”, .

GENERAL MEETINGS

58, {a) Subject to the provisions of the Act and Article 59 hereof, the Company
shall -in éach year hold a general meeting as its Annual General
Meeting in addition to any other meetings in that year and not more
than fifteen months shall elapse between the date of one (1) Annual
General Meeting of the Company and that of the next. Provided that so
lohg as the Comipany hoids s Firgt Annual General Meeting within
eighteen months of its incorporation, it heed not hold it in the year of #ts
incorporation or in the following year. -

(b) All General Meetings other than Annual General Meetings shall be
called Extracrdinary General Meetings.

{c) The time and place of any General Meeting shall be determined by the
Directors.

59. (@)  The Company shall dispense with the holding of Annual General
Meetings in accordance with the provisions of the Act if a resolution to
this effect is passed at a General Meeting by all Members as, being
entitied to do 80, vote in person or by proxy present at the General
Meeting

(b) Notwithstanding a resolution referred to in Article 59(a) being passed
to dispense with the holding of Annual General Meaetings, any Member
may by notice given to theé Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Act require an Annual General Meeting to be held
for that year. The Company shall proceed to convene the Annual
General Meeting in-gccordance with these Articles but shall not be
requifed to convene Annual Genéral Meetings for the subsequent
years unless a notice by a Mentber to require the Company to do so
has been received.
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(c) Where a resolution referred to in Article 5%(a) has been passed to
dispense with the holding of Annual General Meetings, any reference
in the Act to a deed, act or thing which is required to be done in Annual
General Meetings shall be regarded as being done if a resolution or
resolutions of the Members has or have been passed by written
means in accordance with these Articles to the effect that such deed,
act or thing has been done, and any reference in the Act to the date or
conclusion of an Annual General Meeting shall, unless an Annual
General Meeting is held, be tegarded as the date of expiry of the
period within which the Annual General Meeting is required by law to
be held.

60. The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an Extraordinary General
. Meeting and Extraordinary General Meetings shall aiso be convened on such
requisition or, in default, may be convened by such requisitionists, as provided by
Section 176 of the Act. If at any time there are not within Singapore sufficient Directors
capable of acting to form a quorum at a meeting of Directors, any Director may
convene an Extraordinary General Meeting in the same manner as nearly as possible
as that in which meetings may be converied by the Directors.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

61. Subject to the provisions of the Act as to special notice, at least fourteen days'
notice in writing (exciusive both of the day on which the notice is served or deemed to
- be served and of the day for which the notice is given) of every General Meeting shall
. be given in the manner hereinafter mentioned to such persons (including the Auditors)
© as are under the provisions hergin containgéd entitled to receivé notice from the

. Company. Provided that a General Meeting notwithstanding that it has been called by a -

. shorter notice than that specified above shall be deemed to have been duly called if it is
- S0 agreed: ’ :

(a) in the case of an Annual General Meeting by all the Members entitled
to attend and vote thereat; and

(b) in the case of an Extraordinary General Meeting by that number or -

majority in humber of the Members having a right to attend and vote
thereat as is required by the Act,

- B2 (a) Every notice calling a General Meeting shall specify the place and the
: day and hour of the Meeting, and there shall appear with reascnhable
prominence in every such noticé a statement that & Member entitled to
attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and to vote
instead of him and that a proxy need not be a Member of the
Conipany.

{b) {n the case of an Annual General Meeting, the notice shall also specify
the Meeting as such.

{c) in the case of any General Meeting at which business other than
routine business is to be. transacted, the notice shall specify the
general nature of the business; and i any resolution is to be proposed
as & Special Resolution or as requiring special notice, the notice shall
contain a statement to that effect.
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63. Routine business shall mean and include only business transacted at an
Annual General Meeting of the following classes, that is to say:

(a) Declaring dividends,

{b) Reading, considering and adopting the balance sheet, the reports ‘of
the Directors and Auditors, -and other accounts and documents
required to be annéxed to the balance sheét,

(c) Appointing Auditors and fixing the remuneration of Auditors or
determining the manner in which such remuneration i8 to be fixed; and

() Fixing the remuneration of the Directors proposed to be paid under
Arlicle 96.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

64, Where there are two (2) or more Members of the Company, no business shall

" be transacted at any General Meeting unless two (2) Members ate present to form a

quorum. in the event of a corporation being beneficially entitled to the whole of the
issued capital of the Company or there being only one (1) Member of the Company,
who is entitled to vote on the resofution(s) being tabled at a General Meeting, then onhe
(1) person representing such corporation or as the case may be, the sole Member who
is entitled to vote on the resolution(s) being tabled at a General Meetirig, shalt be a
quorum and shall be deemed to constitute a Meeting and, if applicable, the provisions
of Section 179 of the Act shall apply. For the purpose of this Article, "Member” includes
a person attending by proxy or by attorney or as representing a corporation which is a
Member.

65, if within half an hour from the time appointed for the Meeting a quorum is not
present, the Meeting if convened on the requisition of Members shall be dissolved. In
any other case it shall stand adjourned to the same day iri the next week at the same
time and place, ot to such other day and at such other time and place as the Directors
may determine, and if at such adjourned Meeting & quorum is not present within fiteen
minutes from the time appointed for hoiding the Meeting, the Meeting shall be
dissolved. No notice of any such adjournment as aforesaid shall be required to be
given to the Members.

66. . The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall preside as Chairman at every
General Meeting. if there be no such Chairman or if at any Meeting he be riot present
within fiteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the Maeting or be unwilling to
act, the Members present shall choose some Director to be Chairman of the Meeting
or, if no Director be present ot if all the Directors present decline to take the Chair, one
{1) of their number present, {o be Chairran.

67. The Chairman may, with the consent of any Meeting at which a quorum is
present (and shall if so directed by the Meeting) adjourn the Meeting from time to time
and from place to place, but no business shali be transacted at any adjourned Meeting
except business which might lawfully have been transacted at the Meeting from which
the adjournment took place. When a Meeting is adjourned for thity days or more,

- notice of the adjourned Meeting shall be given as in the case of the original Meeting.

Save as aforesaid, it shall hot be necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of
the business to be transacted at an adjourned Meeting.

Routine business.

‘Quorum,.

Adjournment
if quérum not
present.

Chairman.

Adjournment.




. 68. At any General Meeting a resolution put to the vote of the Meeting shall be

decided on a show of hands unless a pol! be (before or gn the declaration of the result
of the show of hands) demanded by at least one (1) Member present in person or-by
proxy or by attorney or in the case of a corporation by a representative and entitled to
vote thereat Provided always that no poll shall be demanded on the election of a
Chairman or on a question of adjournment. Unless a polf be so demanded (and the
demand be not withdrawn) a declaration by the Chairman that a resolution has been
carried or carried unanimously or by a particular majority or lost ahd an entry to that
effect in the minute book shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the
number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against the resolution. A
demand for a poll may be withdrawn.

69. If a poll be duly demanded (and the demand be not withdrawn} it shall be taken
in such manner (including the use of ballot or voting papers or tickets) as the Chairman
may direct and the result of a poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the Meeting
at which the poll was demanded. The Chairman may, and if so requested shall, appoint
scrutineers and may adjourn the Meeting to some place and time fixed by him for the
purpose of declaring the result of the poll.

70. If any votes be counted which ought not to have been counted or might have
been rejected, the error shall not vitiate the result of the voting unless it be pointed out
at the same Meéeting or at any adjourniment thereof and not in any case unless it shall
in the opinion of the Chairman be of sufficient magnitude.

71. In the case of equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the
Chairman of the Meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll is
demanded shall not be entitled to a casting vote.

72. A poll demanded on any question shall be taken either immediately or at such
subsequent time (not being more than thirty days from the date of the Meeting) and
place as the Chairman may direct. No notice need be given of & poll not taken
immediately. _ :

73, The demand for a poll shall not prevent the continuance of a Meeting for the
transaction of any business, other than the question on which the poll has been
demanded. :

VOTES OF MEMBERS

74. Subject to these Aricles and to any special rights or restrictions as to voting
attached to any class of shares hereinafter issued on a show of hands every Member
who is present in person or by proxy o attorhey or in the case of a corporation by a
representative shall have ohe (1) vote and on a poli every such Member shall have one
(1) vote fot every share of which he is the holder. '

75 Where there are joint registered holders of any share any one (1) of such
persons may vote and be reckoned in a quorum at any Meeting either personally or by
proxy or by attorney or in the case of a corporatioh by a representative as if he were
solely entitled thereto and if more than one (1) of such joint holders be so present at
any Meeting that one (1) of such persons so ptesent whose name stands first in the
Register in respect of such share shall alone be entitied to vote in respect thereof.
Several executors or administrators of a deceased Member in whose name any share
stands shall for the purpose of this Article be deemed joint holders thereof. '
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76. A Member of unsound mind or whose person o estate is liable to be dealt with
in any way under the law relating to mental disorders may vote whether on a show of
hands of on a poll by his committee, curator bonis or such other person as propetly has
the management of his estate and any such committée, curator bonis or other person
may vote by proxy or attorney, Provided that such evidence as the Directors may
require of the authority of the person claiming to vote shall have been deposited at the
Office not less than forty eight hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

77. Subject to the provisions of these Articles every Member shall be entitled to be
present and to vote at any General Meeting either personally or by proxy of by attorney
or in the case of a corporation by a représentative and to be reckoned in a quorum in
respect of shares fully paid and in respect of partly paid shares where calls are not due
and unpaid.

78. No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the
‘Meeting ot adjourned Meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered and
every vote not disallowed at such Meeting shall be valid for all purposes. Any such
objection made in due time shall be referred to the Chairman of the Meeting whose
decision shall be final and conclusive.

79. On a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy of by attorney or in
the case of a corporation by it§ representative and a person entitied to more than one
(1) vote need not use all his votes or cast all the votes hie uses in the same way.

80. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and:

(a) . in the case of an individual shal! be signed by the appo_intor or by his

attorney, and :

{b) in the case of a corporation shall be either under the common seal ot
signed by its attorney or by an officer on behalf of the corporation.

The Directors may, but shali not be bound to, réquire evidence of the authority of any
-such attorey or officer.

81. A proxy need not be é Member of the Company.

82.  Aninstrument appointing a proxy or the power of attomey or other authority, if
any, must be feft at the Office or such other place (if any) as is specified for the purpose
in the notice convening the Meeting not less than forty eight hours before the time
appointed for the holding of the Meeting or adjourned Meeting (or in the case of a poll
before the time appointed for the taking of the poll) at which it is to be used and in
default shall not be treated as valid unless the Directors otherwise determine.

83. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the following form with such
variations if any as circumstances may require or in such cther form as the Directors
may accept and shall be deemed to include the right to demand of join in defnanding a
polk: '

"ALPHALAND HOLDINGS (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.”

"IfWe.
of

Voting rights
of Members of

‘unsound rind.

Right to vote.

Objections.

Votes on a poll.

Appointment
of proxies.

Proxy need not
be a Member. 4

Deposit of proxies.

Form of proxies.




a Member/Members of the abovenamed Company hereby appoint
of

or whom failing

of

to vote for me/us and on myfour behalf

at the (Anhual, Extraordinary of Adjourned,

as the case may be) Genéral Meeting of

the Company to be held onthe  day

of and at every adjournment

thereof."

"As Witness my hand this  day of

An instrument appointing a proxy shall, unless the contrary is stated thereon, be valid
as well for any adjournment of the Meeting as for the Meeting to which it relates and
need not be witnessed. :

84. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy (which for
the purposes of these Articles shall also include a power of attorney) shall be valid
notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or revocation of the
proxy, or of the authority under which the proxy was executed of the transfer of the
share in respect of which the proxy is given, Provided that no intimation in writing of
such death, insanity, revocation o transfer shall have been received by the Company
at the Office (or such other place as may be specified for the deposit of instruments
appointing proxies) before the commencement of the Meeting ot adjourned Meeting (or
in the case of a poll before the time appointed for the taking of the poll) at which the
proxy is used.

85. Any corporation which is a Member of the Company may by resoiution of its
directors or other governing body authorise such person as it thinks fit to act as its
representative at any Meeting of the Company of of any class of Members of the
Company and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercisé the same powers
on behalf of the corporation as the corporation could exercise f it were an individual
Member of the Company. : :

SHAREHOLDERS' RESOLUTIONS BY WRITTEN MEANS

86. Save for a resolution referred to in Article 59 to dispense with the convening of

Annual General Meetings or a resolution for which special notice is required under the.

Act, any resolution required to be passed by the Members of the Company in General
Meeting may be passed by written means in accordance with the provisions of
Sections 184A to 184F of the Act and these Articles. Where a resolution is deemed to
be duly passed by written means, the requirements as to the procedures in these
Articles concerning the giving of notice of General Meetings, proceedings of such
General Meetings and voting by Members at such General Meetings shall be deemed
to be satisfied. :
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87. A Special Resolution is passed by written means if the resolution indicates that
" it is a Special Resolution and it has been formally agreed on any date by one (1) or
more Membets who on that date represent at least seventy-five per cent. (75%) of the
total voting rights of all Members who on that date would have the right to vote on that
resolution had a General Meeting been convened. An Ordinary Resolution is passed
by written means if the resolution does not indicate that it is a Special Resolution and #
has been formally agreed on any date by one (1) or more Members who on that date
represent a majority of the total voting rights of all Members who on that date would
have the right to vote on that resolution at a General Meeting had a General Meeting
been convenad. For the avoidance of doubt, the requisite number of Members need
not give their formal- agreement to any Special Resolution or Ordinary Resolution on a
single day.

88. For the purpose of Article 87, a resolution is formally agreed by a Member if:

(a) the Company receives from the Member (or his proxy) a document
that () is given to the Company in legible form or a permitted
alternative form; (i) indicates the Member's agreement (or agreement
on his behalf) to the resolution; and (iii} includes the text of the
resolution or ctherwise makes clear that it is that resclution that is
being agreed to; and

(b) the Member (or his proxy) had a legible text of the resolution before
giving that docurnént.

in this Article 88 and also for the purpose of Article 90, something is "in legible form or
a permitted alternative form" if, and only i, it is sént or otherwise supplied (aa) in a form
(such as paper document) that is legible before being sent of othierwise supplied .and
does not change form during that process or (bb) through electronic communication.

89. A resolution of the Company may only be passed by written means if
agreement was first sought by the Directars in accordance with Article 90 or ynider the
circumstances described in Section 184B(1)(a)(ii) ‘of the Act. For the avoidance of
doubt, other than the requirements stated in Articles 86 to 93 hereof, there is no other
condition in the Mermiorandum of Association or these Articles relating to the passing of
resolutions by written means that needs to be satisfied.

90. in seeking the agreement of the Members to pass any resolution by written
means, the Directors shall send to each Member who would havé the right to vote on
that resolution had a General Meeting been convened, a copy of the text of the
resolution in legible form or a permitted alternative form. As far as practicable, the
Directors shall send the text of the resolution as respects eévery Member at the same
time and without detay, and the provisions of Section 184C of the Act shall apply.

1. Any Member who représents at least five per cent. (5%) of the total voting
rights of all Members would have the right to vote on that resolution had a General
Meeting been convened, may within seven (7) days after receiving the text of the
resolution sent pursuant to Article 80 or the documents referred to in Section 183(3A)
of the Act, as the case may be, give notice to the Company requiring that a General
Meeting be convened for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, passing the
resolution. Upon receipt of such a notice, the Directors shall proceed to convene a
General Meeting in accordance with Articles 61t 73 hereof.




92, Where a resolution of the Members is passed by written means, the Company
shall notify every Member that the resolution has béen passed within fifteen days from

" the date on which a Director or Company Secretary first bécomes aware that the

resolution has been passed. The Company shall cause a record of the resolution
passed by written means and the indication of each Member's agreement (or
agreement oh his behalf) to be entered in-a book in the like manner for recording
proceedings of General Meetings in the minute book. Any such récord, i purporting to
be signed by a Director or the Company Secretary shall be evidence of the
proceedings in passing the resolution, and until the contrary is proved, the record shall

- also be evidence that the requirements of the Act with respect to the proceedings in

passing the resolution have been complied with.

93. Notwithstanding anything in these Aricles, where there is only one (1} Member
of the Company, a resolution passed by written means may be passed by the Member
recording the resolution and signing the record.

DIRECTORS

94, Subject to the other provisions of Section 145 of the-Act, the Company shall
have at least one (1) Director being a natural person of full age and capacity who is
ordinarily resident in Singaporé and unless otherwise determined by a General
Meeting, there shall be no maximum number of Directors holding office at any time.

95. - A Director need not be a Member and shall not be required to held any share
qualification unless and until otherwise determined by the Company in General Mesting
but shall be entitled to attend and speak at General Meetings. Whete the Company

only has one (1) Member, the sole Member may also be the solé Director of the

Company Provided that the requirements in Article 94 are complied with.

96. Subject to Section 169 of the Act, the remuneration of the Directors shali be

determined from time to time by the Company in General Meeting, and shall be
divisible among the Directors in such proportions and manner as they may agrée and
in default of agreement equally, except that in the latter event any. Director who shall
hold office for part only of the period in respect of which such remuneration is payable
shall ba entitled ohly to rank in such division for the proportioh of remuneration related
to the period during which he has held office.

97. The Directors shall be entitied to be repaid alt travelling. or such reasonabie
expenses as may be incurred in attending and returning from meetings of the Directors
or of any committee of the Directors or General Meetings or otherwise howsoever in or
about the business of the Company in the course of the performance of their duties as
Directors.

28. Any Director who is appointed to any executive office or serves on any
committee or who otherwisé performs or fenders services, which in the opinion of the
Directors are outside his ordinary duties as a Direttor, may, subject to Section 169 of
the Act, be paid such extra remuneration as the Directors may determine.

99. {(a) - Other than the office of Auditor, a Director may hold any other office or
place of profit under the Company and he or any firm of which he is a
member may act in a professional capacity for the Company in
conjunction with his office of Director for such period and on such
terms (as to remuneration and otherwise) as the Directors may
determine. Subject to the Act, no Director or intending Director shall be
disqualiied by his office from contracting or enteting into any
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arangement with the Company either as vendor,” purchaser or
otherwise nor shall such contract or arrangement or any contract or
arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Company in which any
Director shall be in any way interested be avoided nor shall any
Director so contracting or being so interested be liable to account to
the Company for any profit realised by ary such contract or
arrangement by reason only of such Director holding that office or of
the fiduciary relation thereby established.

(b) Every Director shall observe the provisions of Section 156 of the Act
refating to the disclosure of the interests of the Directors in transactions
or proposed transactions with the Company or of any office or property
held by a Director which rmight create duties or interests in conflict with
his duties or interests as a Director. Subject fo such disclosure, a
Director shall be entitled to voté in respect of any transaction or
arrangement in which he is interested and he shall be taken into
account in ascertaining whether a quorum is present.

100. (a) A Director may be or become a director of or hold any office or place of
profit (other than as Auditor) or be otherwise interested in any
company in which the Company may be interested as vendor,
purchaser, sharéholder or otherwise and uniess cotherwise agreed
shall not be accountable for any feées, remuneration or other benefits
received by him a$ a director or officer of or by vitue of his interest in
such other company.

{b) The Directors may exercise the voting powet conferred by the shares
in any company held or bwned by the Company in such manner and in
ail respects as the Directors think fit in the interests of the Company
(including the axércise thereof in favour of any resclution appointing
the Directors or any of them to be directors of such company or voting
or providing for-the payment of remuneratioh to the directors of such
company) and any such Director of the Company may vote in favour of
the exercise of such voting powers in the manner aforesaid
notwithstanding that he may be or be about to be appointed a director
of such other company.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

! 101.  The Directors shall have power at any time and from time to time to appoint
| any person o be a Director either to fill 2 casual vacancy or as an additional Director
- but so that the total number of Directors shail not-at any time exceed the maximum
. number, if any, fixed by or in accordance with these Articles.

102, The Company may by Ordinary Resolution remove any Director before the
- expiration of hig period of office, notwithstanding anything in these Articles or in any
© agreement between the Company and such Director.

© 103.  The Company may by Ordinary Resolution appoint another person in place of
- a Director removed from office under the immediately preceding Article.
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MANAGING DIRECTORS

104.  The Directors may from time to time appoint one (1) or more of their body to be
Managing Director or Managing Directors of the Company and may from time to time
(subject to the provisions of any contract between him or them and the Company)
remove or dismiss him or them from office and appoint ancther or others in his or their
places.

105. A Managing Director shall subject to the provisions of any contract between
him and the Company be subject to the same provisions as to resignation and removal
as the other Directors of thé Company and if he ceases to hold the office of Director
from any cause he shall ipso facto and immediately cease to be a Managing Director.

106.  Subject to Section 169 of the Act, the remuneration of a Managing Director
shall from time to time be fixed by the Directors and may subject to these Articles be by
way of salary or commission or participation in profit$ or by any or ali of these modes.

107.  The Directors may from time to-time entrust to and confer upon a Managing
Director for the time being such of the powers exercisable under these Articies by the
Directors as they may think fit and may confer such powers for such time and to be
exercised on such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as they think
expedient and they may confer such powers either collaterally with or to the exclusion
of and in substitution for all or any of the powers of the Directors in that behalf and may
from time to time revoke withdraw aiter or.vary all or any of such powers.

VACATION OF OFFICE OF DIRECTOR

108.  The office of a Director shall be vacated in any one (1) of the following events,
namely: ‘

(a) if he becomses prohibited from being a Director by reason of any order
made under the Act;

(b) if he ceases to be a Director by virtue of any of the provlsuons of the
Act or theseé Articles:

[{] subject to Section 145 of the Act, if he resigns by writing under his
hand left at the Office;

(d) if he has a receiving order made against him or suspends payments or
compounds with his creditors generally;

(e} if he be found lunatic or becomes of unsound mind; or
(f it he be absent from meetings of the Directors for a continuous period

of six (6) months without leave from the Directors and the Directors
resolve that his office be vacated.
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109.

(&)

(b}

{c}

(d

(e)

®

(9)

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Any Director may at any time by writing under his hand and deposited
at the Office or by telefax, telex or by ¢able sent to the Secretary

. appoint any person to be his Alternate Director and may in like manner

at any time terminate such appointment. Any appointment or removal
by telefax, telex or cable shall be confirmed as soon as possible by
letter, but may be acted upon by the Company meanwhile.

A Director or any other person may act as an Alternate Director to
represent more than one (1) Director and such Alternate Director

. shall be éntitled at Directors' maetings to one (1) vote for every

Director whom hé reptesents in addutron to his own vote if he is a
Dlrector

The appointmient of an Alternate Director shall ipso facto determine on

the ‘happening of any event which if hé were a Director would render -

his office as a Director to be vacated and his appointmeént shall also
determine ipso facto if his appomtor ceases for any réason to be a
Dlrector

An Alternate Director shall be entitied to receive notices of meetings of
the Directors and to attend and vote as a Director at any such meeting
at which the Director appointing him is not personally present and
generally, if his ‘appointor is absent from Singaparé or is ofherwise
unable to act as such Director, to perform all functions of his
appointment as a Director (except the power to appoint an Altemate
Director) and to sign any resolution in accordance with the provisions
of Article 115.

An Alternate Director shall not be taken into account in reckoning the
minimum or maximum number of Directors allowed for the time being
under these Articles but he shall be counted for the purpose of

reckoning whether & quorum is present at any mesting of the Directors -

attended by him at which he is entitlad to vote Providéd that he shall
not constitute a quorum under Article 112 if he .is the only person
present at the meeting hotwithstanding that he may bé an Altemate to
more than ohe (1) Dtrector

An Alternate Director may be repaid by the Comipany such expenses
as might properly be répaid to him if he were 4 Director and he shall be
entitled to receive from the Company such proportion (if any) of the
remundration. othefwise payabie to his appointor a8 Such appointor
may By notice in writing to the Company from time to time direct, but
save as aforesaid he shall not in respect of such appointment be
entitied to receive any remuneratlon from the Company.

An Alternate Dlrector shall not be required to hold any share
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PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

(a) The Directors may meet together for the despatch of business, adjourn
or otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit: Subject to the
provisions of these Aricles questions arising at any mieeting shall be
determined by a majority of votes and in case of an equality of votes
the Chairman of the meeting shall not have a sécond or casting vote.

(b) Any Director may participate at a meeting of the Dlrectors by telephone
conference, video conference, audid visual or by means of a similar
communication equipment wheréby all persons participating in -the
meeting are able to hear each other in which event such Director shall
be deamed to be present at the meéating. A Directof participating in a
meeting in the manner aforesaid may also be taken into account in
ascertaining the presence of a quorum at the meeting. Minutes of the
proceedings at a meeting by telephone conference, video conference,
audio visual, or other similar communications equipment signéd by the
Chairman of the meeting shall be conclusive evidénce of such
proceedings and of the observance of all necessary formaiities.

111. A Dirgctor may and the Secretary on the requisition of a Director shall at any
time summon a meeting of the Directors. At least fourteen days notice in writing

(exclusive of the day on which the notice is served or is deemed to be served) of every -

meeting of the Directors shall be given to every Director. Every such notice shall
specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting and the general nature of the
business to be transdcted Providaed that any Director may waive the requirement for
notice or accept shorter notice of any mesting of the Directors.

112, Except where the Company only has one (1) Director, the quorum necessary
for the transaction of the business of the Directors may be fixed by the Directors and
unless so fixed at any othér number shall be two (2) Provided that where no quorum is
pregent at any duly convened meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned seven (7) days
thereafter at the same time and place and such Directors as are present at such
meeting shall be the quorum. A meeting of the Directors at which a quorum is présent
shall be competent to exércise all the powers and discretions for the time being
exercisable by the Directors.

. 13.  The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancies in their body
but if and so long as the number of Directors is reduced below the mihimum number
fixed by or in accordance with these Ariciés the continuing Directots or Director may
act for the purpose of filling up such vacancies or of summoning General Meetings of
the Company but not for any other purpose. If there be no Directors or Director able or
willing to act, then any Members, or if the Company only has a scle Member, then that
sole Member, may summon & General Meeting for the purpose of appointing one (1) or
more Directors.

. 114, The Director shall elect. a Chairman and- may elect one {1) or more

Vice-Chairmen and the Directors may determine the period for which such officers shall
respectively hold office. The Chairmari (if any), of, in the absénce of theé Chairman, the
Vice-Chairman (f any), or, in the event that there are more than one (1)
Vice-Chairman, the senior in appointment among them, shall preside at the meetings of
the Directors. If such officers have niot been appointed, or if no such officer is présent
- within five (5) minutes after the time appointed for a meeting, the Directors present
- shall choose one (1) of their number to be Chairman at such meeting.
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115, A resolution in writing signed by the majority of Directors being not less than
are sufficient to form a quorum shall be as effective as a resolution passed at a meéting

of the Directors duly convened and held, and may consist of several documents in the .

like form each signed by one (1) of more of the Directors Provided that, where a
Director has appointed an -Afternate Director but is not himself in Singapore the
signature of such Akemate Director (f in Singapore), shall be required. The
expressions "in writing” and “signed” include approval by any such Director by telefax,
telex, cable, telegram, wireless or facsimile transmission or any form of electronic
communication approved by the Directors for such purposé from fime to time
incorporating, if the Directors deem nacessary, the use of security and/or identification
procedures and devices approved by the Directors.

116,  The Directors may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of
such member of members of their body as they think fit. Any committee so formed shall
in the exercise of the powers so delegated conform to any reguilations that may be
imposed on them by the Directors.

117.  The meet:ngs- and proceedings of any such committee cénsisting of two (2) or
more members shall be governed by the provisions of these Aricles regulating the
meetings and proceedings of the Directors, so far as the same aré applicable and are

not superseded by aﬂy reguiations made by the Directors under the last préceding

Article.

118. Al acts done by any meeting of Directors or of a committee of Directors or by
anhy person acting as Director shall as regards all pérsons dealing in good faith with the
Company, notwithstanding that there was some defect in the appointment of any such
Director or person acting as aforesaid of that they or any of them were disqualified or
had vacated office or were ot enfitled to vote be as valid as if every such person had
been duly appointed and was qualified and had continied to be a Diréctor and had
been entitled to vote.

119.  Notwithstanding anything in these Articles, wheté the Company only has a sole
Director, all acts required to be done or business required to be transactéd by a

. meeting of Directors or of 4 committes of Direstoré may be done or undertaken by the

sole Director and a declargtion made by the sole Diractor, and recerded and signed by
the sole Director, shall be evidence that the same has been done or undertaken.

GENERAL POWERS OF THE DIRECTGRS

120.  The business of the Company shall be managed by or undEr the direction of

© the Directors. The Directors may exercise all the powers of the Compary except any
© powers that thig Act or the Memorandum of Association and Articles .of the Company
. require the Company to exercise in General Meeting. in particular and without
. prejudice to the generality of the forégolng the Directors may at their discrétion exercige

every borrowing powet vestsd in the Company together with collateral power of
hypothecating the assets of the Company including any uncalled or célled but unpaid
capital, Provided that the Directors  shaii not carry into effect any proposals for

. disposing of the whole or substantially the whole of the Cothpariy's undertaking or
- property unless those proposals have been approved by the Compahy in Genersl
. Meeting.
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121.  The Directors may from time to time by power of attotney appoint any
company, firm or person or any fluctuating body of persons whether nominated directly
or indirectly by the Directors to be the attorney or attorneys of the Company for such
purposes and with such powers, authorities and discretions (not exceeding those
vested in or exercisable by the Directors under these Articles) and for such period and
subject to such conditions as they may think fit, and any such power of attorney may
contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with
such attorney as the Directors may think fit and may also authiorise any such attorney
to subdelegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions vésted in him.

122.  All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchange, and other negotiable
or transferable instruments and ail receipts for moneys paid to the Company shall be
signed, drawn, accepted, éndorsed ot othetwise executed, as the case may be, in such
manner as the Directors shall from time to time by resolution determine.

BORROWING POWERS

123.  The Directors may borrow or raise money from time to time for-the purpose of
the Company or secute the payrent of such sums as they think fit and may secure the
repayment or payment of such sums by mortgage or charge upon all or any of the
property or assets of the Company or by the issue of debentures or otherwise as they
may think fit. B

SECRETARY

124.  The Secretary or Secretaries shall and a Deputy or Assistant Secretary or
Secretaries may be appointed by the Directors for such term, at such rémuneration and

upon such conditiohs as they rmay think fit, .and ary Secretary, Deputy or Assistant.

- Secretary so appointed may bé removed by them, but without prejudice to any claim he
~+may have for damages for breach of any contract of service between him and the
- Company. The appointment and duties of the Secretary or Secretaries shall not conflict
- with the provisions of the Act and in particular Section 171 theraof. - :

SEAL

. 125,  (a) The Directors shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal, which shall
f only be used by the authority of the Directors or a committee of
Directors authorised by the Directors in that behalf, and every
instrumerit 16 which the Seal shall be affixed shall (subject to the
provisions of these Articles as to certificates for shares) be signed by.a
Director and shall be countersigned by the Secretary or by a second
Director or by some other person appointed by the Directors in place of
the Secretary for the purpose. '

(b) The 6ompany may exercise the powers'-conferred by the Act with
- regard to having an Official Seal for use abroad, and such powers shall
be vested in the Directors.

{c) The Company may have a duplicate Common Seal as referred to in
Section 124 of the Act which shall be a facsimile of the Comimcn Seal
with the addition on its face of the words "Share Seal".

\
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AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS

126.  Any Director or the Secretary or any person appointed by the Directors for the
purpose shall have power to authenticate any documents affecting the constitution of
the Cornpany and any resolutions passed by the Company, including a resolution
passed by written means, or resolutions passed by the Directors, and any books,
records, documents anhd accounts relating to the business of the Company, and to
certify copies thereof or extracts therefrom as true copies or extracts; and where any

.. books, records, documents or accounts aré elsewhere than at the Office, the local

manager and other officer of the Company having the custody theraof shall be deemed
to be a person appointed by the Diréctors as aforesaid.

127. A document putporting to be a copy of a resolution of the Diréctors, an extract
from the minutes of a meeting of Diréctors or a declaration sighed by a sole Director in
accordance with Article 119 hereof, which is certified as such in accordance with the
provisions of the last preceding Article shall be conclusive &vidence in favour of all
persons dealing with the Compariy upon thé fajth theteof that such resolution has been
duly passed or, as the case may be, that such extract is a true and accurate reécord of a
duly constituted or deemed meeting of the Directors. Any authéntication or cetification
made pursuant to this Article may be made by any electronic means approved by the
Directors from time to time for such purpose incorporating, if the Directors deem
hecessary, the use of security procedures or devices approved by the Diractors.

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

128. The Company may by Ordinary Resolution declare dividends but (without
prejudice to the powers of the Company to pay interest on share capital as
hereinbefore provided) no dividend shall be payable except out of the profits of the
Company, of in excess of the amount recommended by the Directors. .

129.  Uniess and to the extent that the rights at’t’ached to any shares or the terms of
. Issue thereof othérwise provide and except as othérwise permitted under the Act:

(a) all dividends in respect of shares must be paid in proportion to the
number of shares held by a Member but where shares are partly paid
all dividends must be apportioned and paid proportionately to the
amounts pald or credited as paid on the partly paid shares; and

(b) all dividends must be apportioned and paid probortionately to the
amounts sb paid or credited as paid during aty portion or portions of
the period in respect of which dividend is paid.

+ For the purposes of this Article, no atount paid on a share in advance of calls shall be
- treated as paid on the share.

¢ 130.  Ifand so far as in the opinion of the Directors the profits of the Company justify

. such payments, the Ditectors may pay the fixed preferential dividends on any class of

- shares carrying a fixed preferential dividend expressed to be payable on a fixed date

- on the half.yearly or other dates (if any) prescribed for the payment thereof by the
- terms of issue of the shares, and subject thereto may also from time to time pay to the

. holders of any other class of shares interim dividends thereon of such amounts and on

¢ such dates as they may think fit. : '
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131, No dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share shail bear
interest against the Company. :

132.  The Directors may deduct from any dividend or other monheys payable to any
Member on or in respect of a share all sums of money (if any) presently payable by him
to the Company on account of calls or in connection therewith.

133.  The Directors may retain any dividend or other moneys payable on or in
respect of a share on which the Company has & lien and may apply the same in or
towards satisfaction of the debts, liabilities or engagements in respect of which the lien
exists, . ,

134, The Directors may retain the dividends payabie on shares in respect of which
any person is under the provisions as to the transmission of shares hereinbefore
contained entitled to become a Member or which any person under those provisions is
entitted to transfer until such person shall become a Member in respect of such shares
or shall duly transfer the same,

135.  The payment by the Directors of any unclaimed dividends or other motieys
payable on or in respect of a share into a separate account shall not constitute the
Company a trustee in respect thereof. Al dividends unclaimed after being declared
may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Directors for the benefit of the
Company and any dividend unclaimed after a period of six (6) years from the date of
declaration of such dividend may be forfeited and if so shall revert to the Company but
the Directors may at any time thereafter at their absolute discretion annul any such
forfeiture and pay the dividend so forfeited to the person entitled thereto prior to the
forfeiture. ' :

136. The Company may, upon the recommendation of the Directors, by Ordinary
Resolution direct payment of a dividend in whole or in part by the distribution of specific
assets and in particular of paid up shares or debentures of any other company or in
any one (1) or more of such ways; and the Directors shall give effect to such resolution
and where any difficulty arises in regard to such distribution, the Directors may settle
the same as they think expedient and in particular may fix the value.for distribution of

such specific assets or ahy part thereof and may determine that cash payments shall -

be made to any Members upon the footing: of the value so fixed in ordér to adjust the
rights of all parties and may vest any such specific assets in trustees gs may seem
expedient to the Directors. :

137.  Any dividend or other moneys payabie in cash on or in respect of a share may
be paid by cheque or wartant sent through the post to the registered address of the
. Member or person entitled thereto, or, if several persons are registered as joint holders
. of the share or are entitled thereto in consequence of the death of bankruptcy of the
: holder to any one (1) of such persons or to such persons and such address as such
- persons may by writing direct. Evety such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to
- the order of the person to whom it is sent or fo Such pérson as the holder or joint
~ nolders or person or persons entitied to the share in consequence of the death. or
- bankrupicy of the holder may direct and payment of the cheque # purpotting to be

- 2ndorsed ot the receipt of any such person shall be a good discharge to the Company.

. EBvery such cheque or wattant shall be sent at the risk of the person éntitled to the
: money fepresented thereby.

. “38 A transfer of shares shall not pass the right to any dividend declared on such
. shares before the registration of the transfer. '
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RESERVES

139.  The Directors may from time to time set aside out of the profits of the Company
and carry to reserve such sums as they think proper which, at the discretion of the
Directors, shalf be applicable for meeting contingencies or for the graduat liquidation of
any debt or liability of the Company or for repairing o maintaining the works, plant and

- machinery of the Company ot for special dividends or bonuses or for equalising

dividends or for any other purpose to which the profits of the Company may properly be
applied and pending such application may either be employed in the business of the
Company or be invested. The Dirgctors may divide the reseérve into such special funds
as they think fit and may consolidate into one (1) fund any special funds or any parts of
any special funds into which the reserve may have been divided. The Directors may
also without placing the same to reserve céarry forward any profits which they may think
it not prudent to divide.

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

140.  The Company may, upoh the recommendation of the Directors, by Ordinaty
Resolution resolve that it is desirable to capitalise any sum for the time being standing
to the credit of any of the Company's reserve accounts or any sum standing to the
credit of the profit and loss account or otherwise available for distribution, Provided that
such sum be not required for paying the dividends on any shares carrying a fixed
cumulative preferéntial dividend and accordingly that the Directors be authorised and
directed to appropriate the sum resoived: to be capitalised to the Members holding
shares in the Company in the proportions in which such sum would have béen divisible
amongst them had the same been applied or been applicable in payinhg dividénds and
to apply such sum on their behalf aither in or towards paying up the amounts (rf any) for
the time being unpaid on any shares heid by such Members respectively, or in paymg
up in full urissued shares or debentures of the Cornpany

141.  Whenever s,uch a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed, the

. Directors shall make all appropriations and applications of the sum resolved to be
capitalised thersby and all allotments and issues of fully paid shares or debentures (if _

any) and generally shall do all acts and thmgs required to give effect thereto with full
power to the Directors to make stich provision by payment in cash or otherwise as they.
think fit for the case of shares of debéntures becoming distributable in fractions and
also to authorise any person to enter on behalf of all the Membars interested into an
agreement with the-Company providing for the aliotment to thent réspectively, credited
as fully paid up, of any further shares to which they may be entitlad upon such
capitalisation or (as the case may require) for the payment up by the Company on their
behalf, by the application thereto of their respective proportions of the sum resolved to
be capitalised, of the amounts or any part of the amount§ remaining unpaid on their
existing shares and any agreement made under such authority shall be efféctive and
binding on all such Members.

MINUTES AND BOOKS

142.  The Directors shall cause mmutes to be made in books to be provided for the
purpose:

(@) of all appointments of officers made by the Directors;

{b) of the names of the Difectors present at each meeting of Directors and
of any commitiee of Dirgctors:
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(c) of all resolutions and proceedings at all Mestings of the Company and
of any class of Members, of theé Directors and of committees of
Directors;

(d) of all declarations made by a sole Director which is recorded and

signed by the sole Director; and

(e)  of all resolutions passed by written means with the indication of each
Member's agreement (or agreément on his behalf) to the resolutions.

143.  The Directors shall duly comply with the provisions of the Act and in particular
the provisions in regard to registration of charges created by or affecting property of the
Company, in régard to keeping 4 Register of Diréctors, Managers, Secretaries -and
Auditors, the Register, a Register of Mertgagés and Charges and a Register of
Directors’ Share and Debenture Holdirigs and in regard to the production and furnishing
of copies of such Registers and of any Register of Holders of Debentures of the

Company. :

144.  Any register, index, minute book, book of accounts or other book required by
these Articles or by the Act to be kept by or on behalf of the Company may be kept

‘either by making entries in bound books or by recording them in any other manner, In

any case in which bound books are not used, thé Directors shall take adequate
precautions for guarding against falsification and fot facilitating discovery.

ACCOUNTS
145.  The Directors shall cause to be kept such accounting and other records as are

necessary to comply with the provisions of the Act and shall cause those records to be
kept in such rmanner as to enable them to be conveniéntly and properly audited.

+ 146.  Subject to the provisions of Section 199 of the Act, the books of accounts shall

be kept at the Office ‘or at such other place or places as the Directors think fit within
Singapore. No Mermiber (other than a Directar) shali have any right of inspecting any
account of book or document or other recording of the Company except as is conferred
by law or authorised by the Directors or by an Ordinary Resolution of the Company.

147.  Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Directors shall cause to be prepared
and to be laid before the Company in General Megting such profit and loss accounts,
balance sheets, group accounts (if any) and reports as may be necessary.

148.  Subject to the provisions of the Act, a copy of every balance sheet and profit

. and loss account which is to be laid before a General Meeting of the Company

{including every document required. by the Act to be annexed thereto) together with a

copy of every report of the Auditors relating thereto (if required) and of the Directors'

report shall not less than fourteen days before the date of the Meéting be sent to every
Member of, @nd every holder of debentures (if any) of, the Company and to every other
person who s éntitied to receive notices from the Company under the provisions of the
Act or of these Articles, Provided that this Article shall not require a copy of these
documents to be sent to any person of whose address the Compary is not aware or to

-mofe than one (1) of the joint holders of a share in the Comipany or the several persons

entitled thereto in consequénce of the death. or bankruptcy of the holder or otherwise
but any Member to whom a copy of these documents has not been sent shall be
entitied to receive a copy free of charge on application at the Office.

Keeping of
Registers, etc.

Form of registers,
etc.

Directors to keep
proper accounts.
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inspection,
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of accounts.
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accounts.




AUDITORS

149.  Subject to the provisions of the Act, Auditors shall be appointed and their
duties regulated in accordance with the provisions of the Act. Every Auditor of the
Company shall have a right of access at all times to the accounting and otheér records
of the Company and shall make his report as required by the Act.

150.  Subject to the provisions of the Act, all acts done by any person acting as an
Auditor shall, as regards all persons dealing in good. faith with the Company, be valid,
notwithstanding that there was some defect in his appointment or that he was at the

- time of his appointment not qualified for appointment.

151, The Auditors shall be entitied to attend any General Meéting and to receive all
notices of and other communications relating to any General Meeting to which any

Member is entitled and to be heard at any Genéral-Meeting on any part of the business _

of the Meeting which concerns them as Auditors.

NOTICES
152. (&) Any notice may be given by the Company to ény Member in any of the
following ways: '

(i) by delivering the notice personally to him; or

(ii) by sending it by prepaid mail to him at his registered address
in ‘Singapore or whete such address is outside Singapore by
prepaid air-mail; or

(i) by sending a cable of telex, or telefax containing the text of
the notice to him .at his registered address in Singapore or
where such address is outside Singapore to Such address or
to any other address as might have beer previously notifisd
by the Member concetned to the Company; or

(iv) by eléctronic communication containing the text of the notice
to him at an electronic mailing address as previously notified
by the Member concemned to the Company for the purpose of
‘recelving electronic comemunication,

(b) Any notice of other communication served under any of the provisions
of these Aticles on or by the Comipany or any officet of the Company
may be tested or verified by telex or telefax or telephone or electronic
means or such other manner as may be convenient in the
circumstances but the Company and its officers are under no
obligation so to test or varify any such notice or cormmunication.

183.  All notices and documents (including a share certificate) with respect to any
shares to which persons are jointly entitled shall be given {o whichever of such persons
is named first on the Register and notice so given shall be sufficient notice to all the
holders of such shares. :
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154.  Any Member with a registered address shall be entitled to have served upon
him at such address any notice to which hg is entitied under these Articles, except
where the Member has an electronic mailing address notified to the Company for the
purpose of receiving electronic communication whereupoh any notice may be served
by the Company to the Member concerned by electronic communication at the said
electronic mailing address.

155. A person entitied to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a
Member or otherwise upon supplying to the Company such evidence as the Directors
may reasonably require to show his title to the sharé, and upon supplying also an
address for the service of notice, shall be entitled to have served upon him at such
addrass any notice or document to which the Member but for his death ot bankruptcy
or otherwise would be entitled and such service shail for all purposes be deemed a
sufficient service of such notice or documgnt on all persons interested (whether jointly
with or as claiming through or under him) in the share. Save as aforésaid any notice or
document delivered or sent by post to or left at the registered address of any Member
in pursuance of thése Articles shall {notwithstanding that such Member be then dead or
bankrupt or otherwise not entitled to such share and whether of not the Company have
. notice of the same) be deemed to have besn duly served in respect of any share
- registered in the name of such Member as sole of joint holder.

186. {a) Any notice given in conformity with Article 152 shall be déemed to
have been given at any of the following times as may be appropriate:

(i) when it is delivered personally to the Member, at the time
: when it is so delivered,

(i when it is sent by prepaid mail to an address in Singapore or
by prepaid airmail to an address ocutside Singapore, on the
second day following that oh which the notice was put into the
post; ot '

(i) when the notice is sent by cable or telex, or telefax, or
electronic communication, on the day it is s¢ sent.

{b) In proving such service or sending, it shail be sufficient to prove that

the letter containing the notice or document wag propérly addressed

. and put into the post office as a prepaid letter or airmail letter as the

case may be or that a telex or telefax or ¢lectronic communication was

properly addressed and transmitted or that a cablé was properly
addressed and handed to the relévant authority for despatch,

157.  Any notice on behalf of the Compa'ny of of the Directors shall be deemed
effectual if it purports to bear the signature of the Secretary or other duly authorised
officer of the Company, whether such signature is printed or written

158.  When a given-number of days' notice o notice extending over any other period
is required to be given the day of service shall, unless it is otherwise provided or
. required by these Articles of by the Act, be not counted in such number of days or
. period. ' : '
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189. (a) Notice of every General Mseting shall be given in the manner
herainbefore authorised to:

(i) every Member;
(i) every person entitied to a share in consequence of the death
. or bankruptcy or otherwise of a Member who but for the same
would be erititled to receive notice of the Meeting; and
(iii) the Auditor for the time being of the Company.

(b) No other person shall be entitled to receive notices of General
‘Meetings. -

160.  The provisions of Articles 152, 156, 157 and 158 shall apply mutatis mutandis,
to notices of meetings of Directors or any committee of Directors.

WINDING UP

161,  Subject to the provisions of these Articles and the Act, if the Company is
wound up (whether the liquidation is voluntary, under supervision, or by the Gourt) the
Liquidator may, with the authority of a Special Resolution, divide among the Members
in specie or kind the whole or any part of the assets of the Company and whether or

not the assets shall consist of property of one (1) kind or shall consist of properties of

differént kinds and may for such purpose set such value as he deems fair upoh any
one (1) or more class of classes of property to be divided as aforesaid and may
determine how such divisioh shall be cartied out as betwaen the Members or different
classes of Members. The Liquidator may, with the like authority, vest the wholeé or any

 part of the assets in trustees .upon such trusts for the benefit of Members as the

Liquidator with the like authority thinks fit and the liquidation of the Company may be
ciosed and the Company dissolved but so that no Member shall be compelled to
accept any shares or other securities in respect of which there is a liability.

INDEMNITY

162.  Subject to the provisions of the Act, every Director, Auditor, Secretary or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Company &gainst all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him in the execution and
discharge of his duties or in relation thereto-and in particular and without prejudice to
the generality of the foregoing ho Director, Manager, Secretary or other officer of the
Company shall be liable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other Director
or officer or for joining in any receipt or other act for conformity or for any loss or
expense happening to the Company through the insufficiency or deficiency of title to
any property acquired by order of the Direclors for or on behalf of the Company or for
the insufficiency or deficiericy of any security in.or upon which any of the moneys of the
Company shall be invested or for any loss or damage arising from the bankruptcy,
insolvency or tortious act of any person with whom any monays, securities or effects
shall be deposited or left or for any other loss, damage or misfortune whatever which
shall happen in the execution of the duties of his office or in telation therato unless the

same happen through his own negligénce, wiltul defautt, breach of duty or breach of
trust. )
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NAMES, ADDRESSES AND OCCUPATIONS OF SUBSCRIBERS

© WOO MAY POH

. 476 Ang Mo Kio Avenue 10
#11-796 _
Singapore 560476

Corporate Secretarial Manager

Dated this 2™ day of March 2007

Witness to the above signature:

HO LONGEE
Certified Public Accountant
8 Cross Street

#11-00 PWC Building.
Singapora 048424
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=% SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION- =l
2 SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills S
SRS City of Mandaluyong, Metro Manila on
Company Reg. No. CS200701955 -
CERTIFICATE OF FILING 2
OF

'AMENDED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the amended articles of incorporation of the
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MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION
( Amending Article VII thereof )
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copy annexed, adopted on June 15, 2007 by a majority vote of the Board of
Directors and by the vote of the stockholders owning or representing at least
two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock and certified under oath by the
Secretary and a majority of the Board of Directors of the corporation was
approved by the Commission on this date pursuant to the provision of Section 16
of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, Batas Pambansa Blg, 68, approved on
May 1, 1980 and copies thereof are filed with the Commission.

e,

‘ Unless this corporation obtains or already has obtained the appropriate
Secondary License from this Commission, this Certificate does not authorize it to
undestake business activities requiring a Secondary License from this Commission
such as, but not limited to acting as: broker or dealer in securities, government
securities eligible dealer (GSED), investment adviser of an investment company,
close-end or open-end investment company, investment house, transfer agent,
commodity/financial futures exchange/broker/merchant, financing company, pre-
need plan issuer, general agent in pre-need plans and time shares/club
shares/membership certificates issuers or selling agents thereof. Neither does this
Certificate constitute as permit to undertake activities for which other government
agencies require a license or permit.

“i(tlit‘i't‘l‘lll\att‘lt(t‘Q_t‘&ltc_t_:t_t‘\\_t‘oit\\1ill)ll!lll‘l}ij)i}#la)pii}ii)p}))lt!lbloda_i‘ihilll :
Hllninilnunnnnunuln‘:uuunu_ounnuunnnnnuulnnnt-uHIHHHHHHIunuuis

JOUOCOC0000000C000000000000G00000000000000A00000000000000000000000000000GONNCONUNLCC U IS
”‘“v;!'v'\v\n‘h\n\'h'n‘n\'»nnnnpnp)-{ N e e e e e e s e ey

'l

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal
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of this T jssion to be affixed at Mandaluyong City, Metro Manila, Philippines, o
this day of January, Two Thousand Eight, =
ENITO A. CATARAN | =

Director =

Company Registration and Monitoring Department
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AMENDED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
- OF

MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

The undersigned incorporators, all of legal age and majority of whom are residents of the

Philippines, have this day voluntarily agreed to form a stock corporation under the laws of the Republic of
the Philippines.

' AND WE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:
FIRST: That the name of the said corporation shall be MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION.
SECOND: A. That the primary purposc of this corporation is:

To invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire and own, hold use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage,
pledge, exchange' or otherwise dispose, as may be permitted by law, of real and personal property of every
kind and description including shares of stock, subscriptions, bonds, debenturcs, notes, evidences of
indebtedness, and othef securities or obligations of any corporation or corporations, association or
associations, domestic or foreign, for whatever lawful purpose or purposes the same may have been
organized and to pay therefore in money or by exchanging therefore stocks, bonds, or other evidences of
indebtedness or securities of this or any other corporation, and while the owner or holder of any such real
or personal property, stocks descriptions, bonds, debentures, contracts, or obligations, to receive, collect'
and dispose of interest, dividends and income arising from such property; and to possess and exercise in
respect thereof all rights, powers and privileges of ownership, including all voting powers of any stock so
owned; 'pmvided, however, that the corporation shall not engage in dealership of securities or in the
stockbrokerage business. |

B. That the corporation shall have all the eXpress powers of a corporation as provided
for under Section 36 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines.

THIRD: That the place where the principal office of the Corporation is (o be established or
located is at: ‘f




No./Street 6766 Ayala Avenue, Legaspi Village  (if applicable)

City/Town Makati City

FOURTH: That the term for which the Corporation is to exist is fifty (50) years from and after

the date of issuance of the certificate of incorporation.

FIFTH: That the names, nationalities and residences of the incorporators of the Corporation are

as follows;
Name Nationalily
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO | Filipino
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES Filipino
| BRINIA A. FLOJEMON Filipino
EUFROCINA L. HENSON | Filipino
EDUVEGES O. BATALAN Filipino

Residence

152 Tropical Ave., BF homes
Int’l. Las Pifias city

San Francisco Gardens
Boni Ave., Mandaluyong City

539 San Rafael Street
Mandaluyong City

673-F Lerma St., Old Zaniga
Mandaluyong City

195-B4 S. Tuazon St., Poblacion
Pateros, Metro Manila




SIXTH: That the number of directors of said corporation shall be five (5) and that the names,
nationalities and residences of the first directors who are o serve until theit successors are elected and
qualified as provided by the by-laws are as follows:

Name Natignality Residence
(Complete Address)
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO Filiping 152 Tropical Ave., BF Homes Int’l.,
' Las Pinas City
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES Filiping San Francisco Gardens
: Boni Ave., Mandaluyong City
BRINIA A. FLOJEMON Filipino 539 San Rafael Streel
_ Mandaluyong City
EUFROCINA L. HENSON Filipino 673-F Lerma St., Old Zaniga
_ Mandaluyong City
EDUVEGES O, BATALAN Filipin 195 B4 S. Tuazon Street
’ Poblacion, Pateros MM

SEVENTH: That the authorized capital stock of the corporation is ONE HUNDRED TWENTY
MILLION PESOS (Phpi20.000.000.00), in lawful money of the Philippines, divided intc ONE

HUNDRED TWENTY N S (120,000,000} shares with the par value of One Peso
(Php1.00) per share. (As amended oi ﬁ % 52"07

EIGHTH: That at least 25% of the authorized capital stock has been subscribed and at least 25%
of the total subscriplion has been paid as follows:

Name _Nationality No. of Amount Amount Paid
. Sharcs Subscribed
Subscribed

DOMINION EQUITIES; INC. . Filipino 24,999,995  24,999,995.00 6,249,995.00
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO Filipino 1 1.00 1.00
BRINIA A. FLOJEMON Filipino 1 1.00 1.00
EUFROCINA L. HENSON Filipino 1 1.00 £.00
EDUVEGES 0. BATALAN Filipino 1 1.00 1.66
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES Filipino 1 1.00 1.00

Total 25,000,000 25,000,000,00 6,230,000.00

NINTH: No transfer of stock or inierest which would reduce the stock ownership of Filipino
citizens to less than the required percentage of the capital stock as provided by existing laws shall be
allowed or permitted to be recorded in the proper books of corporation and this restriction shall be
indicated in the stocks certificates issucd by the corporation. ‘

TENTH: That BRINIA A. FLOJEMON has been elected by the subscribers as treasurer of the
corporation (o act as such untif his/her successor is duly elected and qualified in accordance with the by-
laws; and that as such Treasurer, he/she has been authorized to receive for and in the name and for the
benefit of the corporation, afl subscriptions paid by the subscribers.

ELEVENTH:  That the corporation manifests its willingness to change its corporate name in
the event another person, firm or entity has acquired a prior right to use the said firm name or one
deceptively or confusingly similar to it. - -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have set our hands this 25" day of January 2007 at Makati City.

(Sgd) | Sed)




JOSEPHINE A. MANALO MA. LOURDES A. TORRES

106-187-432 111-575-388
(Sgd) {Sgd)
BRINIA A. FLOJEMON EUFRQCINA L. HENSON
107-469-976 124-869-937
{Sgd)
EDUVEGES O. BATALAN
127-533-496
WITNESSES:




- ACKNOWLEDGMENT

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPIUNES) -
QUEZON CITY, MM. )8.8

BEFORE ME, a Notarv Public in and for Quezon City,. MM, Philippines, this 29 January 2007
personally appeared:

Name , Community Tax Certificate Date & Place Issued

No.
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO 15127410 January 16, 2007-Makati City
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES 15130474 January 17, 2007-Makati City
BRINIA A. FLOJEMON 15130233 January 17, 2007-Makity City
EUFROCINA L. HENSON 15130239 January 17, 2007-Makati City
EDUVEGES O. BATALAN 15130471 Janwary 17, 2007-Makati City

all known to me and to me known to be the same persons who executed the foregoing Articles of
Incorporation and they acknowledged to me that the same is their free and voluntary act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal on the
date and at the place first above written,

Doc. No. 440,
Page No. 8%
Book No. 18;
Series of 2007
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE DEC 12 2007 '
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF |
MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

The undersigned Corporate Secretary and members of the Board. of Directors of
Masrickstar Corporation (hereinafter, the “Corporation”) do hereby certify that the
accompanying copy of the Amended Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation embodying
the underscored amendments to the SEVENTH Article, increasing the authorized capital
stock of the Corporation from One Hundred Million Pesos (B 100,000,000.00) divided into
One Hundred Million (100,000,000) shares with a par value of One Peso (P 1.00) per share to
One Hundred Twenty Million Pesos (P 120,000,000.00) divided into One Hundred Twenty
Million (120,000,000,000) shares with a par value of One Peso (® 1.00) per share , is true and
correct and was approved by the affirmative v %;naioﬁty of the Board of
Directors at their duly constituted meeting hel®/ @ik in Makati City, and by
slockholders owning or representing al leasl two-thirds (2/3) of the oulstanding, capilal stock
of the Corperation at their meeting held on the same date at the principal office of the
Corporation. :

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunp si this Certificate of Amendment of
the Articles of Incorporation this ___ day%ﬂ__ﬁl}_‘g}_. in Makati City, Philippines.

A. MANALO BRINTA A. %"rgN

:106-187-432 - : 107-469-976

EUFRQCINA L. HENSON MA. LOURDES A. TORRES
1 124-869-937 TIN: 111-575-388
EDUVEG%ATAIAN
TIN: 127-533-496 :
‘ 13 AUG 2007
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of , 2007, affiants exhibiting to
me the following:
Name CTC No. Date & Place Issued
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO 15127410 January 16, 2007-Makati City
MA, LOURDES A. TORRES 15130474 January 17, 2007-Makati City
BRINIA A. FLOJEMON 15130233 January 17, 2007-Makily City
EUFROCINA L. HENSON _ 15130239 January 17, 2007-Makati City
EDUVEGES O. BATALAN 15130471 January 17, 2007-Makati City
Doc. No. _6_51_,
Book No. _/%_;
3z LEL
Page No. ; ' %ppoinim t No.
Series of 2007, : Notary ‘pub]ic Makati ﬁ!

4g" l:{rtih!ﬁ?rg‘eg: \ Liberty Genter

coros HriniCoste Str=st

Corewinrt ~ v, Makati iy

. oi fuomeys No. 51282
1 o7 17 170 akali City/01-05-2007
155 333 10vMakati City01-04-2007
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THISE PRESENTS:
This is to certify that the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of

=
¥ REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES =
s SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION ey
i< SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills pd
% City of Mandaluyong, Metro Manila -
& COMPANY REG. NO. CS200701955 2
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MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION

were duly approved by the Commission on this date upon the issuance of this
Certificate of Incorporation in accordance with the Corporation Code of the
Philippines (Batas Pambansa Big.68), and copies of said Articles and By-Laws are
hereto attached.
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This Certificate grants juridical personality to the corporation but does not
authorize it to undertake business activities requiring a Secondary License from this
Commission such as, but not limited to acting as: broker or dealerin securities,
govemment securifies eligible dealer (GSED), investment adviser of an investment
company, close-end or open-end investment company, investment house, transfer
agent, commodity/financial futures exchange/broker/merchant, financing company,
pre-need plan issuer, general agent in pre-need plans and time shares/club
shares/membership certificates issuers or selling agents thereof. Neither does this
Certificate constitute as permit to undertake activities for which other govemment
agencies require a license or permit,
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.As a registered corporation, it shall submit annually to this Commission the
reports indicated at the back of this certificate. - |

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal
i nission to be affixed at Mandaluyong City, Metro Manila, Philippines,
[C~day of February, Two Thousand Seven. :

M—\_
ENITO A. CATARAN
Director '

Company Registration and Monitoring Department
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ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION v

OF
MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION

( Name of Corporation)

Know All Men By These Presents:

The undersigned incorporators, all of legal age and majority of whom are
residents of the Philippines, have this day voluntarily agreed to form a stock corporation
under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines. :

THAT WE HEREBY CERTIFY :

FIRST: The name of this corporation shall be:

MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION

SECOND: A . That the primary purpose of this corporation is

To invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire and own, hold use, sell, assign,
transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or otherwise dispose, as may be permitted by law,
of real and personal property of every kind and description including shares of stock,
subscriptions, bonds, debentures, notes, evidences of indebtedness, and other securities or
obligations of any corporation or corporations, association, or associations, domestic or
foreign, for whatever lawful purpose or purposes the same may be have been organized
and to pay therefore in money or by exchanging therefore stocks, bonds, or other
evidences of indebtedness or securities of this or any other corporation, and while the
owner or holder of any such real or personal property, stocks, descriptions, bonds,
debentures, contracts, or obligations, to receive, collect and dispose of interest, dividends,
and income arising from such property; and to possess and exercise in respect thereof all
rights, powers, and privileges of ownership, including all voting powers of any stock so
owned; provided, however, that the corporation shall not engage in dealership of
securities or in the stockbrokerage business.
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B. That the corporation shall have all the express powers of a corporation
as provided for under Section 36 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines.

THIRD: That the place where the principal office of the corporation is to be
established is at :

6766 Ayala Avenue, Legaspi Village

No./Street - (If applicable)

: Makati Ci
City/Town att Lty Province

FOURTH: That the term for which the corporation is to exist is fifty (50) years
from and after the date of issuance of the certificate of incorporation.

FIFTH: That the names , nationalities, and residences of the incorporators are as
follows:

Name Nationality Residence
(Complete Address)
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO FILIPINO 152 Tropical Ave., BF Homes
' It Es Pimy Clty
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES ~ FILIPINO San Francisco Gardens
BRINIA A. FLOJEMON FILIPINO 539 San Rafael Street
—Mandaluyong City
EUFROCINA L. HENSON FILIPING ~673-F Létina St,, OId Zaniga
' —Mandalnyong City
EDUVEGES OrBATALAN " FILIPINO —195-B4 ST Twazom St Poblacionr —
Pateros, Metro Manila
$C-97-01 | 2
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SIXTH: That the number of directors of said corporation shall be _ Five (5)
and that the names, nationalities and residences of the first directors who are to serve until
their successors are elected and qualified as provided by the by-laws are as follows:

Name Nationality Residence
{Complete Address)
JOSEPHINE A, MANALO FILIPINO 152 Tropical Ave., BF Homes Int’l
Las Pinas City
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES FILIPINO San Francisco Gardens.
Boni Ave., Mandaluyong City .
BRINIA A, FLOJEMON FILIPINO 539 San Rafael Street.
' —Muandatuyong City
EUFROCINA L. HENSON FILIPINO 673-F Lerma St. Old Zaniga
_ —Mandahiyong-City
EDUVEGES O. BATALAN  FILIPFINO 195 B4 S. Tuazon Street
—~Poblacion, PaterosMM—

SEVENTH: That the authorized capital stock of the corporation is

—ONE HUNDRED MILLIQN PESOS (P
pesos in lawful money of the Philippines, divided into

ONE HUNDRED MILLION SHARES ( 100,000 go0es with the par

value of ONE PESO (P _1.00 ) pesos per share.

SC-97-01 3 conformed copy




EIGHTH: That at least 25% of the authorized capital stock has been subscribed
and at least 25% of the total subscription has been paid as follows:

No. of Amount Amount
Name Nationality Shares Subscribed Paid
Subscribed

DOMINION EQUITIES, INC. FILIPINO 24,999,995 24,999.995.00  6,249,995.00
JOSEPHINE A 'MANALO ™~ FILIPFINO T 1.00 1.00
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES FILIPINO ] 1.00 _1.00
BRINTA A FLOJEMON FILIPINO 1 1.00 1.00
EUFROCINA L. HENSON FILIPINQ 1 100 100
EDUVEGES O. BATALAN FILIPINO 1 1.00 1.00
_ 25,000,000 ‘ 25,000,000.00  6,250,000.00

Total ==== =-==== C mm====

NINTH: No transfer of stock or interest which would reduce the stock ownership
of Filipino citizens to less than the required percentage of the capital stock as provided
by existing laws shall be allowed or permitied to be recorded in the proper books of
corporation and this restriction shall be indicated in the stocks certificates issued by the
corporation. '

been elected by the subscribers as treasurer of the corporation to act as such until his/her
successor is duly elected and qualified in accordance with the by-laws; and that as such

- Treasurer, he / she has been authorized to receive for and in the name and for the benefit

of the corporation, ail subscriptions paid by the subscribers.

SC-97-01 ' 4 conformed copy




ELEVENTH: That the corporation manifests its willingness to change its
corporate name in the event another person, firm or entity has acquired a prior right to use
the said firm name or one deceptively or confusingly similar to it.

. : 25th -
b d f
JanIn Wxtne:s:sZ 0 {;vheregi,t we lﬁ‘éﬁa@%i t}gur hands this ay o

)
vl — | . Apendie 0 Fonee
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO MA. LOURDES A. TORRES
TQp-T87-432 - TT1-575-388

EUFRGCINA L. HENSON
124-849-937———————

127-533-496

T AT A P

WITNESSES:

{All incorporators appearing on the fifth article and the two witnessess should affix their signatures on
the blanks provided in this page above their respective names.)

$C-97-01 5 ' renfrmmed cony




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Republic of the Philippines)
QUEZON CTTY LM

' ' MR
BEFORE ME , a Notary Public in and folfVEZON ary M.,

day ofAN 2 9 2007, 20 personally appeared :

hilippines, this

Name Community Tax Certificate No. Date & place Issued
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO 15127410 January 16, 2007 — Makati City
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES 15130474 January 17, 2007 ~ Makati City
BRINIA A. FLOJEMON 15130233 January 17, 2007 — Makati City
EUFROCINA I.. HENSON 15130239 January 17, 2007 — Makati City
EDUVEGES O. BATALAN 15130471 January 17, 2007 — Makati City

all known to me and to me _knowh to be the same persons who executed the foregoing
Articles of Incorporation and they acknowledged to me that the same is their free and
voluntary act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
notarial seal on the date and at the place first above written.

comm d .l"-ih_ yid Until Dee. n. 200+

1880kl Igenoxiniabée2d7) Q.C. C
PYA No. 7071217 Jad. 02, mm

Doc. No. A% ;
Page No. ;
Book No. W :

Series of

SC-97-01 6 conformed copy
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KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
This is o certify that the Axticles of Incorporation and By-Laws of

LR AV I )

.

'
idatae e

v

BOERSTAR CORPORATION

¢ s

bidesan b

NN R

?mved the Commaissi this dute the

wmddy i in. mm mué?&m Code of the

MHIHMWBQ.GB), mdeo;iuoﬂddA:ﬂclumdByImm
does

pexsonality to the co: n but not
mmuow mqlﬂlingty lSmmuhyncmeﬂm this
Commission sach as, but not Ihnited to ac as: broker or deslerin securities,

mmmmc), estnent adviser of an investment

. comipany, close-end or investment eompmy, investment boue,inmfer

pre-need pian plm an:l tme

lhnwmﬂp hmnr agents thereof. Ndﬁcrdoudﬂs

- mﬂmsmwm scﬂvitlu for which other government
sgencies require a license or permit.

As a registered corporution, it shall submit annoally to this Commtssion the
reports indiested at the back of this certificste.

mwmnsswnmor I have hereunto set my hand and csused the seal
n _ntebuﬂlxodat Mandsluyong Clty, Motro Manils, Philippines,
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(STOCK)

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF
BOERSTAR CORPORATION
— ( Name of Corporation)

3

Know All Men By These Presents:

The undersigned incorporators, all of legal age and majority of whom are
residents of the Philippines, bave this day voluntarily agreed to form a stock corporation
under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines.

THAT WE HEREBY CERTIFY :

FIRST: The name of this corporation shall be:

BOERSTAR CORPORATION

SECOND: A . That the primary purpose of this corporation is

To invest in, purchase, or-otherwise acquire and own, hold use, sell, assign,
transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or otherwise dispose, as may be permitted by law,
of real and personal property of every kind and description including shares of stock,
subscriptions, bonds, debentures, notes, evidences of indebtedness, and other securities or
obligations of any corporation or corporations, association, or associations, domestic or
foreign, for whatever lawful purpose or purposes the same may be have been organized
and to pay therefore in money or by exchanging therefore stocks, bonds, or other
evidences of indebtedness or securities of this or any other corporation, and while the
owner or holder of any such real or personal property, stocks, descriptions, bonds,
debentures, contracts, or obligations, to receive, collect and dispose of interest, dividends,
and income arising from such property; and to posaess and exercise in respect thereof all
rights, powers, and privileges of ownership, including all voting powers of any stock so
owned; provided, however, that the corporation shall not engage in dealership of
securities or in the stockbrokerage business.

SC-97-01 1 conformed copy




B. That the corporation shall have all the express powers of a corporation

asprowded for under Section 36 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines.
 THIRD: That the place where the principal office of the corporation is to be .
established isat: = ST e
' 6766 Ayala Avenue, Legaspi Vi ' A
No/Strest_ O 10 ATEAAY iVillage - (e applicable)
oo Makati City . E '
_City/‘_If own __ : _ Province

|  POURTH: That the term for which the corporation is to exist is fifty (50) years
ﬁomandaﬁumedaﬁepfmmof_thcégr‘tiﬁwdoﬁmorpomﬁon. ' -

_ FIFTH: That the names , nationalities, and residences-of ‘the incorporators are as
follows: . - : :
Name Nationality Residence
. (COInplete-Ad&uS)
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO FILIPINO 152 Tropical Ave. BF Homes
sttt Pinms €S _

FILIPINO  San Prancisco Gardens

MA, LOURDES A, TORRES

' S Poblacion, Pateros, MM
1 3
2 conformed copy

SC-97-01




SIXTH: That the number of directors of said corporation shall be Five §)
mmmmmmﬁﬁe'mdmmofme-ﬁmmm,mmmemﬁl
ﬂ:eh'mmmdeewdmdqmliﬁedupmvidedbyﬂ:eby-hwsmasfonows:

Name Nationality Residence
_ (Complete Address)

JOSEPHINE A. MANALO  FILIPINO 152 Tropical Ave., BF Homes Int']
' —Lax PhmasCity

i MA. LOURDES A. TORRES _FILIPINO San Francisco Gardens.
g : . B * q“:.’ i!l“ dlm"uns eit’p__‘ —

3

BRINIA A. FLOJEMON FILIPINO 539 San Rafael Street.
—Mandaluyeng-Gity—

MARTA THERESAS. AGUILING FICIFINO — 5420 South Super Highway
| Bangkal Makati Cit

—_Pohlacion, Pateros MM
if
E
B SEVENTH: That the authorized capital stock of the corporation is
E MILLION PESC -(P_1,000,00000 )
pesos in  lawful money of the Philippines,  divided  into
ONE MILLION SHARES ( 1,000,000 ) shares with the par -
w - valueof  ONEPESO (p_1.00 ) pesos per share.
i
SC-97-01 3 conformed copy




EIGHTH: That at least 25% of the authorized capital stock has been subscribed
and at least 25% of the total subscription has been paid as follows:

No. of Amount Amount

Name Nationality  Shares Subscribed Paid

Subscribed

GAMEEQUITIESINC.  FILIPING . - 224995 22499500 56,245.00

RUMBER CORPORATION FILIPINO 25,000 25,000.00 6,250.00
JOSFRHINE ALMANALO FILIPDNO 4 100 — e
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES FILIPINO I 1.00 1.00
BRIIA-A-FLOIEMON.————  FILIPING 1 00— —}O———
MARIA THERESA 8. AGUILINGFILIPING H 1.00 1.00

Tot‘l 250,‘2(?- == 250'202.9- = 62£ o= m

NINTH: No transfer of stock or interest which would reduce the stock ownership
of Filipino citizens to less than the required percentage of the capital stock as provided
by existing laws shall be allowed or permitted to be recorded in the proper books of
corporation and this restriction shall be indicated in the stocks ‘certificates issued by the
corporation.

TENTH : That BRINIA A. FLOJEMON has
beendecwdbydnmbscﬁbmasmsmerofﬂwcorpomﬁonmactassuchmtﬂhis/her
successor is duly elected and qualified jn accordance with the by-laws; and that as such
Treasurer.helslwhnsbeenaumenzedtommformdmﬂwnamcandforthebeneﬁt
of the corporation, all subscriptions paid by the subscribers.

5C-97-01 4 conformed copy




WITNESSES:

% . .
(Au_mmpmmwmumma article and the two wmmquﬂ&mwmmmm
the blanks wvﬂdhtkkmcmm&mpmmnm)

S - -

R

SC-97-01 5 conformed copy




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

' Republic of the Philippines)
S.S.

—MAKATI Ciyy

BEFORE ME , a Notary Public in and for _NPRATI CITY philippines, this

h.'ZAPRZm day of , 20 personally appeared :
Name ‘ Community Tax Cestificate No. Date & place Issued
JOSEPHINE A. MANALO 18204736 Much 03, 2005 — Makati City -
MA. LOURDES A. TORRES 18204733 March 03, 2005 — Makati City
! BRINIA A. FLOJEMON 18204737 March 03, 2005 — Maketi City
! MARIAMS.AGIIII.ING 11904637 September 03, 2004 — Mukati City
‘ EDUVEGES O. BATALAN 18204739 March 03, 2005 — Malati City

all known to me and to me known to be the same persons who executed the foregoing
Articles of Incorporation and they acknowledged to me that the same is their free and
voluntary act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY - WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
notarial scal on the date and at. the place first above written.

Doc. No. _§: : s "ATTY. FRANGOH. DE GUZMAN
Page No. 3 : UBLIC
Book No. . UNTIL 1. 2006
Series of _ 100§ . PTR # 4548658 D
° ISSUED AT MAXATI CITY
ON MARCH 1%, 2005
S$C-97-01 6 conformed copy




(STOCK)

BY - LAWS
OF
BOERSTAR CORPORATION

'(Namc of Corporation)

Section 1. Subscriptions - Subscribers to the capital stock of the corporation shall pay the value
of-themkmwdudamwim&msmdmdﬁim'pmwbymm&m

Unpddmburipﬁdmshﬂinotmnh\mnunlmdmimdbymBWdofDMn.

Section 2. Certificato - mmekhoﬁotshanbeentiﬂedmoneormmwtiﬁmforﬁmy
paid stock subscription in his name in the books of the corporation. The certificates shall
contain the mattery required by law and the Articles of Incorporation. They shall be in such
fmnanddodgnqsmdybemmdby&eBmdofDmmdmbwdmﬁvﬂy.
Thcwﬁﬁcﬁeshpﬂhﬁmdby&eﬁuidennmmodbyﬂw&mﬂuymAuimt
Secretary, and sealod with the corporate seal.

Section 3. Transfer of Shares - Subjaettoﬂ:cmtrictions,temsmdcondiﬁonsconuinedin
the Articles of Incorporation, Mmybemfumd,wld.mipedorpledgedbydelivuyof
the certificates duly indorsed by the stockholder, his attorney-in-fact, or other legally authorized
person. mhmfushﬂbquidmdbindingonthzoommmlyupmmrdﬂnmfin
the books of the corporation. ‘The Secretary shall cancel the stock certificates and issue new
certificates to the transferee. '

No share of stock against which the corporation holds unpaid claim shall be transforable
in the books of the corporstion. ' . ,

ﬁncutiﬁcmlunendﬂédﬁurmm:haﬂbemmped “Cancelled” on the face
thereof, together with the date of cancellation, and attached to the corresponding stub with the
certificate book. :
Section 4. Lost Certificates - In case any stock certificate is lost, stolen, or destroyed, a new
certificate may be issued in lieu thereof in socordance with the procedure prescribed under
Section 73 of the Corporation Code.

BL-§-97-01 p.1 conformed copy




ARTICLEl

MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Section 1. Annual / Regular Mootings - The annual / regular meetings of stockholders shall be
held at the principel officeon « Ar:& Qx5 of each year, if a legal holiday, then on the
day following.

Section 2. Special Meeting -  The special meetings of stockholders, for any purpose or
pmpommyuanyﬁmeboulledbymyofﬂnfollowlng: (a) Board of Directors, at its own
instance, muthewﬁmmquutofmkholdmmpmmﬁngamqimityoftheommg
capital stock, (b) President. ; :

Section 3. Place of Meeting -  Stockholders meetings, whether regular or special, shall be
held in the principal office of the corporation or at any place designated by the Board of
Directors in the city or municipality where the principal office of the corporition is located.

Section 4. Notice of Meeting - Notices for regular or special meetings of stockholders may be
smtbyﬂleswmybypemnddéliv«yorbymailatlausttwo&)weekspriort'oﬂwdateof
ﬁwmeuingtomhswckhomofmmduhishstknmm The notice shall state the
place, date and hour of the meeting, mdﬁnepurpouorputpomforwhichﬂnemuﬁngis
called. :

: When the mecting of stockholders is adjourned to another time or place, it shall not be
neceswytogive.anymﬁeedftheadjoumedmuﬁngifﬂwtimemdplweto.whichthemeeﬁns
indjounwdmumotmoeduthemeethmatwhichtheadjwmenthuken. At the reconvened
meeting, mybﬂheumﬂbemmadﬂntmighthﬁwbeefnmamd on the original date of
the meeting. ‘ '

Section S. Quorum - Unless otherwise provided by law, in all reguiar or special meeting of
stockholders, umujorityofﬂnoumdingcapialmkmmbeprMornpmemdinordﬂ
to constitute a quorum. If no quorum is constituted, the meeting shall be adjourned untit the
requisite amount of stock shall be present.

Section 6. Conduct of Meeting ~ Meetingofmenockho!dmshnllbepresidedoverbydne
President, or in his absence, bynchﬁmtnbechmbyﬂwstockhoidcn. The Secretary,
shall act as Secretary of every meectings, but if not present, the chairman of the meeting shall
appoint a secretary of the meeting.

Section 7. Manner of Voting - At all meetings of stockholders, a stockholder may vote in
person or by proxy. Unless otherwise provided in the proxy, it shall be valid only for the
meetinan_whichithubanpmnbdm‘mw. All proxics must be in the hands of the
Secretary before the time set for the meeting. P ies filed with the Secretary may be revoked
byﬂwctod:hoﬂmoitherinminslmmentinwriﬁngdulyp:weme_dmdmotdedwithﬂw
Sccretary, peior to a scheduled meeting or by their personal presence at the meeting.

BL-§-97-01 p.2 : conformed copy




Section 8. Closing of Transfer Books or Fixing of Record Date - For the purpose of
dminiqﬁwmckhoﬁuseuﬁﬂodwmﬂeeof, or 10 vote at, any meeting of stockholders or
anyadjoummmmforbmdvepaymentofmydividmd. the Board of Directors may
p:widaﬂutﬁwstockandn'msferboohbeclosedforun(m)workingdaysimmedhtely
preceding such meeting. .

ARTICLE Il

BOARD'OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Powers of the Board - Unless otherwiso provided by law, the corporate powers of =

the corporstion shall be exercised, all business conductod and all property of the corporation

' eonlmllodmdha’ld_byt!nnoudofDirmntobedmdlrymdﬁ'omumongﬂwstockholdm.

Wiﬁloutpnjudiqewnwhpowmumybeymﬁodbth. the Board of Directors shall also
have the following powers:

a) From time to time, to make and change rules and regulations not inconsistent
with these by-laws for the management of the corporation’s business and affairs;

b) To purchase, reccive, take or otherwise acquire for and in the name of the
corporation, any and all properties, rights, or privileges, including securities and
bonds of other corporations, for such considerstion and upon such terms and
condiﬁons_ls?thenonfdmwdwnproperoreonvmimt;

¢.) To invest the funds of the corporation in other corporations or for purposes other
than those for which the corporation was organized, subject to such stockholders’
approv:lumayberequiredbylaw;

debonuuqs,orgwﬂﬁﬁ.mbjecttosuchmcklmmwpmvdumaybewqumd
by law, and/or pledge, mmoroﬂ:erwiseumbuallorpmofﬂmmpaﬁes
of the corporation;

c.) To establish pension, retirement, bonus, or other types of incentives or
compensation plans for the employees, including officers and directors of the
corporation; ‘ o .
£) To prosecute, maintain, defend, oomprbmise or abandon any lawsuit in which
memmaimmwmaihmpmnﬁmmmmmmmmwmm
business of the corporation;

BL-§-97-01 ' p-3 A conformed copy




g) To delegate, from time to time, any of the powers of the Board which may
hwﬁxltybedekgﬂedinﬂwcoumofthecumtbushmofﬂmeomouﬁontomy
stmdingorsp‘ecillmmhtuortoanyofﬁceronge'ntmdtoappoimmypenonto
be agent of the corporation with such powers and upon such terms as may be
deemed fit; ‘

h.) To implement thess by-laws and to act on any matter not covered by these by-

laws, provided such matter does not require the approval or consent of the
stockholders undor the Corporation Code.

Section 2. -Election and Term - The Board of Directors shall be elected during each rogular
meeting of stockholders and shell hold offics for one (1) year and until their successors are
clected and qualified,

Section 3. Vacancies- Any acancy occurring in the Board of Directors other than by removal
by the stockholders or by expiration of term, may be filled by the vote of at least 8 majority of

- the remaining directors, if still constituting & quorum; otherwise, the vacancy must be filled by

the stockholders at a regular or at any special meeting of stockholders called for the purpose. A
director so elected to fill s vacancy shall be clected only for the unexpired term of his
predecessor in office.

The vacancy resulting from the removal of a director by the stockbolders in the manner
provided by law may be filled by eloction at the same meeting of stockholders without further
notice, or at eny regular or at any special mecting of stockholders called for the purpose, after
giving notice as prescribed in these by-laws.

Section 4. Meetings - Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held once a month
on such dates and at places as may bo called by the Chairman of the Board, or upon the request
of 2 majority of the Directors.

Section 5. - Notice - Notice of the regular or special meeting of the Board, specifying the date,
time and place of the meeting, shall be communicated by the Secretary to each director
personally, or by telephone, telogram, or by written message, A director may waive this
requirement, either expressly or impliedly.

Section 6. Quorum - A majority of the number of directors as fixed in the Articles of
Incorporation sh:llrconsﬁum:quormnforthemmionofcorporate businesa and every
dechionofnmamajaityofthedimmpmuntatanwetingntwhichmemisaqtmm
shall be valid as & corporate act, except for the election of officers which shall require the vote
of a majority of all the members of the Board.

Section 7. Conduct of the Meetings - Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be presided
over by the Chairman of the Board, or in his absence, by any other director chosen by the Board.

The Secretary, shall act as secretary of every meeting, if not present, the Chairman of the

meeting, shall appoint a secretary of the meeting.

BL-$-97-01 p.4 conformed copy




Section 8. Compensation - By- resolution of the Board, each director shall receive a
reasonable per diem allowance for his attendance at each meeting of the Board. As
compensation, the Board shall receive and allocate an amount of not more than ten percent
(10%) of the net inicome before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such
compensation shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the
Board may deem proper, subject to the approval of stockholders representing at least a majority
of the outstanding ¢apital stock at a regular or special meeting of the stockholders.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICER

Section 1. Election / Appointment - Immediately after their election, the Board of Directors
shall formally organizo by electing the Presidont, the Vice-President, the Treasurer, and the
Secretary at said meeting.

The Board may, from time to time, appoint such other officers as it may determine to
be necessary or proper. Any two (2) or more positions may be held concurrently by the same
person, except that no one shall act as President and Treasurer or Secretary at the same time,

Section 2. President - The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation
and shall exercise the following functions:

a) To preside at the meetings of the stockholders;

b.) To initiate and develop corporate objectives and policies and formulate long
range projects, plans and programs for the approval of the Board of Directors,
including those for executive training, development and compensation;

c.) To supervisc and manage the business affairs of the corporation upon the
direction of the Board of Directors;

d.) To implement the administrative and operational policies of the corporation
under his supervision and control;

e.) To appoint, remove, suspend or discipline employees of the corporation,
prescribe their duties, and determine their salaries;

" f) To overses the preparation of the budgets and the statements of accounts of the
corporation;

g.) To represent the corporation at all functions and proceedings;
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h) To execute on behalf of the corporation sll contracts, agreements and other
instruments affecting the interests of the corporation which require the approval of
the Board of Directors.

i.) To make reports to the Board of Directors and stockholders;

j) To sign certificates of stock;

k.) To perform such other duties as are incident to his office or are entrusted to him
by the Board of Directors.

Section 4 The Vice-Prosident - Ho shall, if qualified, act as President in the abaence of the
latter. He shall have such other powers and duties as may from time to time be assigned to him
by the Board of Directors or by the President.

-~

Sectlon 5. The Secretary - The Secretary must be a resident and a citizen of the Philippines.
He shall have the following specific powers and duties:

a) To record the minutes and transactions of ali meetings of the directors and the
stockholders and to maintain minute books of such meetings in the form and manner

required by law;
b) To keep record books showing the details required by law with respect to the

stock certificates of the corporation, including ledgers and transfer books showing
all shares of the corporation subscribed, issued and transferred;

¢.) To keep the corporate seal and affix it to all papers and documents requiring a
seal, and to attest by his signature all corporate documents requiring the same;

d.) To attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the corporation required by
lgwor&ueby—hwsmbegiven; :

e) To certify to such corporate acts, countersign corporate documents or
certificates, and make reports or statements as may be required of him by law or by
government rules and regulations.

f) To act as inspector at the eloction of directors and, as such, to determine the
number of shares of stock outstanding and entitled to vote, the shares of stock
represented at the meeting, the existence of a quorum, the validity and effect of
and to reccive votes, ballots or cousents, hear and determine questions in
connection with the right to vote, count and tabulate all votes, determine the result,
anddomhact:asmpropeﬂoemdhatlaeelocﬁm

g) To perform suchothwdm:esnmmcldmtmhuoﬂioeorasmaybeusigmd
to him by the Board of Directors or the President.
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Section 6. The Treasurer- The Treasurer of the corporation shall have the following duties:

3) Tokeep ﬁ!l and accurate sccounts ofl'eceipt; and disbursements in the books of
the corporation;

b.) To have custody of, and be responsible for, all the funds, securities and bonds
of the corporation;

c.) To deposit in the name and to the credit of the corporation, in such bank as may
bedui@uedﬁmﬁmhthnebyﬂnnoudofnm all the moneys, funds,
securities, bonds, and similer valuable effects belonging to the corporation which
may come under his control; _ .

d) To render an annual statements showing the financial condition of the
eorpomﬂonandmchoﬂwﬁnmcialrepomuﬂwmudofmmm or the
President may, from time to time require; '

¢) To prepare such financial reports, statements, cestifications and other
documents which may, from time to time, be required by government rules and
regullﬁonsuﬂtombmitﬂwmtothe-pmpergovemmmm

£y To exmisewchpowsandperfmmsmhduﬁumdﬁmcﬁonsasmaybe
assigned to him by the President.

Section 7. Term of Office - The term of office of all officers shall be one (1) year and until
their successors are duly elected and qualified.

Section 8. Vacancies - Ifmypositimoftheofﬁwsbewmesvmtbymnofdﬂth,
resignation, disqualification or for any other cause, the Board of Directors, by majority vote
may elect a successor who shail hold office for the unexpired term.

Section 9. Compensation - The officers shall receive such renumeration as the Board of
Directors may determine. A director shall not be preciuded from serving the corporation in any
other capacity as an officer, agont or otherwise, and receiving compensation therefor.

ARTICLE V

OFFICES

)

Section 1. The principal office of the corparation shall be located at the place stated in Article
11 of the Articles of Incorporation. The corporation may have such other branch offices, sither
within or outside the Philippines as the Board of Directors may desigaate.

BL-8-97-01 p7 conformed copy




ARTICLE VI
AUDIT OF BOOKS, FISCAL YEAR AND DIVIDENDS

Section 1. External Auditor- At the regular stockholders’ meeting, the external auditor of the
corporation for the enmlug year shall be appointed. The external auditor shall examine, verify
and report on the eamings and expenses of the corporation,

Section 2. Fiscal Year - The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of
January and end on the last day of December of cach year.

Section 3. Dividends - Dividends shall be declared and paid out of the unrestricted retained ~
earnings which shall be payable in cash, property, or stock to all stockholders on the basis of
outstanding stock held by them, as often and at such times as the Board of Directors may
determine and in accordance with law,

ARTICLE VII
SEAL

Section 1. Form and Inscriptions - The corporate seal shall be determined by the Board of
Directors. :

ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENTS

Section 1. These by-laws may be amended or repealed by the affirmative vote of at least a
majority of the Board of Directors and the stockholders representing a majority of the
outstanding capital stock at any stockholders’ meeting called for that purpose. However, the
power to amend, modify, repeal or adopt new by-laws may be delegated to the Board of
Directors by the affirmative vote of stockholders representing not less than two-thirds of the
outstanding capital stock; provided, however, that any such delegation of powers to the Board of
Directors to amend, repeal or adoptinew by-laws may be revoked only by the vote of
stockholders representing & majority of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special
meeting.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, we, the undersigned stockholders thdopted the

foreggiptg by-laws and horeunjo  affixed me this day of
_ 200 at .

(Note: 1. [f filed with Articles of Incorporation, these by-laws should be signed by all
tors;
2. Iffiled qfter incorporation, should be signed by majority of the subscribers and
should submit director's certificate for the adoption of the by-laws.)

ﬁu. Rowndie [) Ve
J . MANALO MA. LOURDES A. TORRES
l 187-432 111-575-388 =
ﬂ“&m A%ON
217-758—357 107-469-
EDU VEG%BATALAN
127-533-496
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills
CRy of Mandaluyong, Metro Manlia

COMPANY REG. NO. CS200403122

CERTIFICATE OF INCQRPORATION E

ANNEX &

ROAANEN0E

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

This Is to eertify that the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of

AZURESTAR CORPORATION

were duly spproved by the Commission on this date upen the issuance of this Certificate of
Incorporation in aceordanice with the Corporation Code of the Philippiocs (Batas Pambansa Blg.
68), and copies of sald Articles and By-Laws are hereto attached.

This Certificate grants juridical personality to the corporation but does not authorize it to
undertake business activiies requiting a Sccondary License from this Commissien such as, but
not limited to ncting as: broker or dealer in securities, government securities eligible dealer
(GSED), investment adviser of an investment company, close-end or open-end investment
company, investment house, framsfer agent, commeodity/financial futwres exchange/
broker/merchant, financing compsry, pre-need plan issuer, gencral agent in pre-need plans and
' time shares/chib shares/mentbership certificates ssuers or selliag sgents thereof. Nelther docs
tids Cortificate constitute as permit to undertake activities for which other government agencics
require a Heetise or pormit. .

O AL TR B L
B N

LR IR IR TR N A
[P

A u registered corporution, It shall submit annually to this Commission the reports
dicated at the back of this certificate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set iy hand and caused the. seal of this
mmission to be affixed at Mandahuyong City, Metro Manils, Philippines, this uﬂllyof
jraary, Twe Thousand Fout .

\

NITO A. CATARAN
Director
Company Registration and Monitoring Department
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(STOCK)

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

y

AZURESTAR CORPORATION
{ Name of Corporstion)

Know All Men By These Presents:

The undersigned incorporators, all of legal age and majority of whom are
residents of the Philippines, have this day voluntarily agreed to form a stock corporation
under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines,

THAT WE HEREBY CERTIFY :

FIRST: The name of this corporation shall be:

; AZURESTAR CORPORATION

SECOND: A . That the primary purpose of this corporation is

To invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire and own, hold use, sell, assign,
transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or otherwise dispose, as may be permitted by law,
of real and personal property of every kind and description including shares of stock,
subscriptions, bonds, debentures, notes, evidences of indebtedness, and other securities or
obligations of any corporation or corporations, association, or associations, domestic or
foreign, for whatever lawful purpose or purposes the same may be have been organized
and to pay therefore in money or by exchanging therefore ‘stocks, bonds, or other
evidences of indebtedness or securities of this or any other corporation, and while the
_owner or holder of ‘any such real or personal property, stocks, descriptions, bonds,
debentures, contracts, or obligations, to receive, collect and dispose of interest, dividends,
and income arising from such property; and to possess and exercise in respect thereof all
rights, powers, and privileges of ownership, including all voting powers of any stock so
owned, provided, however, that the corporation shall not engage in dealership of
securities or in the stockbrokerage business. )
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B. That the corporation shall have all the express powers of a corporation
as provided for under Section 36 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines.

L ]

THIRD: That the place where the principal office of the corporation is to be
established is at ;

No./Street 6766 Ayala Avenue (if applicable)

CityfTown ___Makati ity Province

FOURTH: That the term for which the corporation is to exist is fifty (50) years
from and after the date of issuance of the certificate of incorporation.

FIFTH: That the names , nationalities, and residences of the incorporators are as
follows: '

Name ' Nationality Residence
{Complete Address)

~MA-LOURDES-A- TORRES——FILIPIN@—— - Sen-Freneiseo-Homes—~
' Boni Ave., Mand. City

“BRINTA A" FLOJEMON FILIPINO San Rafael Street
Mandahryong City
RONA C. GREGORIO FILIPINO ~ BI19L16 Santan St,, UPS4
_EUFROCINAL.HENSON _____FILIPINQ 181 F. Blumentsitt
L _ Mandaluyong City
~EBUVEGES-O-BAT ALAN——FHAPIN -
_ ' " Pateros, MM,
- 8C-97-01 2 conformed copy




SIXTH: That the number of directors of said corporation shall bEive )
and that the names, nationalities and residences of the first dircctors who are to serve antil
their successors are elected and qualified as provided by the by-laws are as follows:

Name Nationality Residence
(Complcte Address)

MA. LOURDES A. TORRES FILIPINO ' San Francisco Homes

BRINIA A, FLOJEMON FILIPINO San Rafael Street
Mandaluyong City
RONAC-GREGORIO FIIRING
' Paranaque City
EUFROCINA L. HENSON FILIPINO TST ¥. Blisnentritt EXE.
EDUVEGES O, BATALAN FILIPINO 195-B4 S. Tuazon St.

Pagros, MM— —

SEVENTH: That the authorized capital stock of the corporation is
TEN MILLION PESOS ( $0,000,000.00 y

pesos in lawful money of the Philippines,  divided into
- TEN MILLION SHARES ¢ 10,000,000 "y shares with the per

L4

valus of . ONE PESO (P. 1.00

) pesos per share.
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EIGHTH: That at least 25% of the authorized capital stock has been subscribed

and at least 25% of the total subscription has been paid as follows: °
: . No, of Amount Amount
Name Nationality  Shares Subscribed Paid
Subscribed

| _MA LOURDES A TORRES  EILIEINO_ 2459006 249999600 —624.996.00-
 _BRINIAA-FLOJEMON—  ~FILIPRNO— H +60- Fo0— ,

—RONAC-GREGORIO——  —FIIPING— t —+:00- —+-06— -
. “BUFROCTNA L HENSON—  ~FILIPINO— t oo~ 100~

{ “EDUVEGESO'BATALAN “FILIPINO™ T YO0 T

2,500,000  2,500,000.00 625,000.00

Total . mamm T == R W T Y X K

,- NINTH: No transfer of stock or interest which would reduce the stock ownership
. of Filipino citizens to less than the required percentage of the capital stock as provided
{ by existing laws shell be allowed or permitted to be recorded in the proper books of
' corporation and this restriction shall be indicated in the stocks certificates issued by the

corporation.

TENTH : That - Brinia A. Flojemon \ has
been elected by the subsciibers as treasurer of the corporation to act as such until his/er
successor is duly elected and qualified in accordance with the by-laws; and that as such \
Treasurer, he / she has been authorized to receive for and in the name and for the benefit !
of the corporation, all subscriptions paid by the subscribers. ;

© v m—— i b e s
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ELEVENTH: That the corporation manifests its willingness to change its
corporate name in the event another person, firm or entity has acqunred a prior right to use
the said firm name or one deceptively or confusingly similar to it.

at

' 24
F In Witness creof Wgﬁty, P%xu]“ipgﬁgs this - day of
' '

- ' (
Ny GW > ﬂ“, "ﬁ'"'(
4 éA LOURDES A. TORRES BRINII/;.” Fm RONA C, GRB&GORIO

MWWZON EDWBGg O. BATALAN

WITNESSES:
\

\_/ s

{All incorporators appgirlng on the fifth article and the two witnessess should affix their signatures on
the blanks provided in this pa;e above their respective names.)

*
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Republic of the Phlhppmes)
Qummv. MM,
) .
N QUEZON CITY, MM,
BEFO ' Wubhc in and for Philippines, this
day of Rﬁm personally appeared :
Name .Community Tax Certificate No. Date & place Issued
MA\. LOURDES A. TOFFES 15221677 2/3/04 ~ Makati
BRINIA A. FLOJPMON 19389351 5/26/03 - Mandaluyong
RONA C. GREGORTO 18698907 8/23/03 ~ Las Finas
FUFROCINA L. HEMSON 02662831 2/23/04 - Manila
EDOVEGES O. BATAIAN 12650152 1/08/04 - Manila

all known to me and to me known to be the same persons who executed the foregoing
Articles of Incorporation and they acknowledged to me that the same is their free and
voluntary act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
notarial seal on the date and at the place first above written.

JOEL G GORDOLA

NO WEREC
Uil DD B102003
‘ PTR No. 4893 1/5/04 Q€.

Doc. No. ﬁm 3

Page No. ;

Book No.__ Al .

Series of "I

SC-97-01 _ 6 conformed copy




| BY - LAWS

OF

)

‘- AZURESTAR CORPORATION

(Name of Corporation)

ARTICLE 1

MMIWMM

e =+ b g

Section 1. Subscriptions - Subscribers fo the capital stock of the corporation shall pay the value
| of the stock in accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed by the Board of Directors.
‘ Unpaid subscriptions shall not cam interest unless determined by the Board of Directors.

‘ Section 2. Certificate - The stockhoider shall be entitled to one or more certificates for fully
i paid stock subscription in his name in the books of the corporation. The certificates shall
| confain the matters required by law and the Articles of Incorporation. They shall be in such

} .

. form and design as may be determined by the Board of Directors and numbered consecutively.

" “The certificato shall be signad by the President, countersigned by the Sccretary or Assistant
: Secmtnry,mdmiedwiﬂ\thecerpomeseal. : '

. Section 3. Transfer of Shares -  Subject to the restrictions, terms and conditions contained in
" the Articles of Incorporation, shares may be transferred, sold, assigned or pledged by delivery of

the certificates duly indorsed by the stockholder, his attorney-in-fact, or other legally authorized
person. The transfer shall be valid and binding on the corporation only upon record thereof in
the books of the corpofation. The Secretary shall cancel the stock certificates and issuc new
certificates to the transferee.

No share of stock against which the corporation holds unpaid claim shall be transferable
in the books of the corporation.

All certiﬁcatesi surrendered for transfer shall be stamped ‘“Cancelled“ on the face
thereof, together with the date of cancellation, and attached to the corresponding stub with the
certificate book. »

Section 4. Lost Certificates - In case any stock cetificate is lost, stolen, or destroyed, & new
certificate may be issued in licu thereof in accordance with the procedure prescribed under
Section 73 of the Corporation Code. '
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ARTICLEX

MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS
ection 1. Annual / Regular M - The annualy regular meetings of stockholders shall be
held at the pmmpal office on in March of each year, if a legal holiday, then on the

"Section 2.  Special Meeting - The special meetings of stockholders, for any purpose or
_purposes, may at any time be called by any of the following: (a) Board of Directors, at its own
.instance, or at the written request of stockholders representmg a majority of the outstanding
 capital stock, (b) President.

..Mll 3. Place of Meeting -  Stockholders meetings, whether regular or special, shall be
held in.the principal office of the corporation or at any place designated by the Board of
Directors in the city or municipality where the principal office of the corporation is located.

Section 4. Notice of Mecting - Notices for regular or special meetings of stockholders may be
- sent by the Secretary by personal delivery or by mail at least two (2) weeks prior to the date of
' the meeting to esch stockholder of record at his last known address. The notice shall state the
. place, date and hour of the meeting, mdthepurposeorpurpomforwmch the meetmgns
| called,

When the meeting of stockholders is adjoumed to another time or place, it shall not be
 necessary to give any notice of the adjourned meeting if the time and place to which the meeting
- is adjoumed are announced at the mesting at which the adjournment is taken. At the reconvened
- meeting, any business nay be transacted that might have been transacted on the original date of
the meeting. .

Section 5. Quorum - Unless otherwise provided by law, in all regular or special meeting of
* § stockholders, & majority of the outstanding capital stock must be present or represented in order
' to constitute & quorum.  If no quiorum is constituted, the meeting shall be adjourned until the
requisite amount of stock shall be present.

"1 Section 6. Conduct of Meeting - Meeting of the stockholders shall be presided over by the
. President, or in his absence, by a chairman to be chosen by the stockholders. The Secretary,
shall act as Secretary of every meetings, but if not present, the chairman of the meeting shall

appoint a secretary of the meeting.

Section 7. Manner of Voting - At all meetings of stockholders, ‘2 stockholder may vote in
 person or by proxy. Unless otherwise provided in the proxy, it shall be valid only for the
meeting at which it has been presented to the Secretary, All proxies must be in the hands of the
Secretary before the time st for the meeting. Proxies filed with the Secretary may be revoked
by the stockholders either in an instrument in writing duly presented and recorded with the
Secretary, prior to a scheduled meeting or by their personal presence at the meeting.
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the stockholders entitled to notice of, or to vote at, any meeting of stockholders or
ent thereof or to receive payment of any dividend, the Board of Directors may

Gvide that the stock and transfer books be closed for ten (10) working days immediately
"htgsuchmouing.

3

ARTICLE IIY
'BOARD OF DIRECTORS

JBection 1. Powers of the Board - Unless otherwiss provided by law, the corporate powers of
b corporation shatl be exercised, all business conducted and all property of the corporation
pontrolied and held by the Board of Directors to be elected by and from among the stockholders.
ut prejudice to such powers as may be granted by law, the Board of Directors shall also
p the following powers:

8) From time to time, to make and change rules and regulations not inconsistent
with these by-laws for the management of the corporation’s business and affairs;

b.) To purchase, receive, take or otherwise acquire for and in the name of the
. corporation, any and all properties, rights, or privileges, including securities and
" bonds of other corporations, for such consideration and upon such terms and
' conditions as the Board may deem proper o convenient,

c.) Toinvestthe funds of the corporation in other corporations or for purposes other
than those for which the corporation was organized, subject to such stockholders’
approval as may be required by law;

d.) To incur such indebtedness as the Board may deem necessary, to issue evidence
of indebiedness including without limitation, notes, deeds of trust, bonds,
: debentures, or securities, subject to such stockholders approval as may be required
- by law, and/or pledje, mmglge, or otherwise encumber all or part of the properties
of the corporation; -

e) To establish pension, retirement, bonus, or other types of incentives or
compensation plans for the employees, including officers and directors of the
corporation; .

f) To prosecute, maintain, defend, compromise or abandon any lawsuit in which
the corporation pr its officer are either plaintiffs or defendants in connection with the
business of the corporation;

L4
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- &) To delegate, from time to time, any of the powers of the Board which may
lawfully be delegated in the course of the current business of the corporation to any
. ©' standing or special committee or to any officer or agent and to appoint any person to
1" be agent of the corporation with such powers and upon such terms as may be
“ - deemed fit;

h.) To implement these by-laws and to act on any matter not covered by these by-
laws, provided such matter does not requirc the approval or consent of the
stockholders under the Corporation Code. -

Section 2. Election and Term - The Board of Directors shall be elected during each regular
. meeting of stockholders and shall hold office for one (1) year and until their successors are
. clected and qualified,

J¥ Section3. Vacancies- Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors other than by removal
& by the stockholders or by expiration of term, may be filled by the vote of at least a majority of
- the remaining directors, if still constituting a quorum; otherwise, the vacancy must be filled by
the stockholders at & regular or at any special meeting of stockholders called for the purpose. A
. director so elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected only for the unexpired term of his

 predecessor in office.

d The vacancy resuiting from the removal of a director by the stockholders in the manner
provided by law may be filled by election at the same meeting of stockholders without further

notice, or at any regular or at any specisl meeting of stockholders called for the purpose, after
givh.:g notice as prescribed in these by-laws.

¥ Section 4. Meetings - Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held once a month
§ on such dates and at places as may be called by the Chairman of the Board, or upon the request
of a majority of the Directors.

Section 5. Notice - Notice of the regular or special meeting of the Board, specifying the date,
§ time and place of the meeting, shall be communicated by the Secretary to each director
 personaily, or by telophone, telegram, or by written message. A director may waive this
1 requirement, either expressly or impliedly. ' :

Section 6. Quorum - A majority of the number of directors as fixed in the Articles of
Incorporation shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of corporate business and every
decision of at Jeast a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which there is a quorum
shall be valid as a corporate act, except for the election of officers wh:ch shall require the vote
ofamajoﬁtyofnilthe members of the Board.

o

Section 7. Conduct of. the Mectings - Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be presided
over by the Chairman of the Board, or in his absence, by any other director chosen by the Board.
The Secretary, shall act as secretary of every meeting, if not present, the Chairman of the
meeting, shall appoint a saeretn'y of the meeting
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ki Section 8. Compmunon By- resolution of the Board, each director shall receive a
k.réisonable .per diem allowance for his attendance at each meeting of the Board.  As
i, coimpensation, the Board shall receive and aliocate an amount of not more than ten percent
% (10%) of the net income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such
¢ compensation shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the

W Boird may deem propet, subject to the approval of stockholders representing at least a majority

3 of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting of the stockholders.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICER

' 8ection 1. Election / Appointment - Immediately aRer their election, the Board of Directors
" shall formaily organize by electing the President, the Vice-President, the Treasurer, and the

; Secretary at said meeting.

' 3 The Board may; from time to time, appoint such other officers as it may determine to
. be necessary or proper.  Any two (2) or more positions may be held concurrently by the same

" § person, except that no ane shall act as President and Treasurer or Secretary at the same time.

3 ‘Scction2. President - The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation
. and sha!l exercise the following functions:

a) To pm:de at the meetings of the stockholders;

b) To initiate and develop corporate objectives and pelicies and formulate fong
range projects, plans and programs for the approval of the Board of Directors,
including those for executive training, development and compensation;

¢.) To supervise and manage the business affairs of the corporation upon the
direction of the Board of Directors;

d.) To-implement the administrative and operational policies of the corporation
* under his supervision and control;

e) To appoint, remove, suspend or discipline employm of the corporation,
prescribe their duties, and determine their salaries;

f. ) To oversee the preparation of the budgets and the statements of accounts of the
corporation;

8) To represent the corporation at all functions’and proceedings;

BL-§-97-01 : _ p3 . conformed copy
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= - h) To executs on behalf of;thetorporation all contracts, agreements and other
- instruments affecting the interests of the corporation which require the approval of
the Board of Directors, '

i.) To make reports to the Board of Directors and stockholders;
J-) To sign certificates of stock: '

k) To perform such other duties as are incident to his office or are entrusted to him
by the Board of Directors,

Z_Seeﬁon 4. The Vico-President - He shall, if qualified, act as Pre§ident in the absence of the
. Iatter. He shall havo such other powers and duties as may from time to time be assigned to him
J by the Board of Directors or by the President. :

i Section 5. The Secretary - The Secretary must be a resident and a citizen of the Philippines.

- Ho shall have the following specific powers and duties:

a.) To record the minutes and transactions of all meetings of the directors and the
stockholders and to maintain minute books of such meetings in the form and manner
required by law; '

b.) To keep record books showing the details required by law with respect to the
. stock certificates of the corporation, including ledgers and transfer books showing
- all shares of the corporation subscribed, issued and transferred:

c.} To keep the corporate seal and affix it to all papers and documents requiring a
seal, and to attest by his signature all corporate documents requiring the same;

d.) To attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the corporation required by
law or these by-laws to be given;

e) To certify to such corporate acts, countersign corporate- documents or
certificates, and make reports or statements as may be required of him by law or by
government rules and regulations.

f) To act as inspector at the clection of directors and, as such, to determine the
number of shares of stock outstanding and entitled to vote, the shares of stock
represented at the meeting, the existence of & quorum, the validity and effect of
proxies, and to receive votes, ballots or consents, hear and determine questions in
connection with the right to vote, count and tabulate all votes, determine the result,
and do such acts as are proper to conduct the election.

8) To perform such other duties as are incident to his office or as may be assigned
to him by the Board of Directors or the President. :
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1) To keep full and accurate scoounts of receipts and disbursements in the books of
the corporation;

- b)) To have custody of, and be responsible for, all the funds, securities and bonds
-, of the corporation;

¢.) To deposit in the name and to the credit of the corporation, in such bank as may
7+ - be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors, all the moneys, funds,

«.r .socarities, bonds, and similar valuable effects belonging to the corporation which
- My come under his control;

d)  To render an annual statements showing the financial condition of the

. . corporation and such other financial reports as the Board of Directors, or the
- President may, from time to time require; .

| e) To prepare such financial reports,  statements, certifications and other
documents which may, from time to time, be required by government rvles and
regulations arid to submit the same to the proper govemment agencies;

f) To exercise such powers and perform such duties and functions as may be

assigned to him by the President.

Section 7. Term of Office - The term of office of all officers shall be one (1) year and until

g - dheir successors are duly elected and qualified.

Section 8. Vacancies - I any position of the officers becomes vacant by reason of death,

J - resignation, disqualification or for any other cause, the Board of Directors, by majority vote
. may elect a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired term,

Section 9. Compensation - The officers shall reccive such renumeration as the Board of

% Diroctors may determine. A director shall not be precluded from serving the corporation in any
¢ - other capacity as an officer, agent or otherwise, and receiving compensation therefor.

. -

ARTICLE V
OFFICES

3 Su:tlol 1. The principal office of the corporation shall be located at the place stated in Article
. . 111 of the Articles of Incorporation. “The corporation, may have such other branch offices, either
within or outside the Philippines as the Board of Directors may designate.
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ARTICLE VI

AUDIT OF BOOKS, FISCAL YEAR AND DIVIDENDS

a

. ¥
ki Section 1. External Auditor - At the regular stockholders’ meeting, the external auditor of the

& ‘corporation for the ensuing year shall be appointed, The externa! auditor shall examine, verify
°anid report on the earnings and expenses of the corporation.

Section 2. . Fiscal Year - The fiscal year of the corporation shail begin on the first day of
Jazinary and end on the last dzy of December of each year.

_-l,Seelion 3. Dividends - Dividends shall be declared and paid out of the unrestricted retained

f";éamings which shall be payable in cash, property, or stock to all stockholders on the basis of
‘:outstanding stock held by them, as often and at such times as the Board of Directors may
etermine and in accordance with law. '

ARTICLE VI
SEAL

' Section 1, Form and Inscriptions - The corporate scal shall be determined by the Board of

ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENTS

' Section 1.  These by-laws may bé amended or repealed by the affirmative vote of at least a
“majority of the Board of Directors and the stockholders representing a majority of the
. outstanding capital stock at any stockholders’ meeting called for that purpose. However, the
§ power to amend, modify, repeal or adopt new by-laws may be delegated to the Board of
Directors by the affirmative vote of stockholders representing not Jess than two-thirds of the

§ outstanding capital stock; ‘provided, however, that any such delegation of powers to the Board of
" Directors to amend, .‘repeal or adopt ncw by-laws may be revoked only by the vote of

: stockholders representing a majority of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special
§ meeting. .

]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, the undersigned stockholders have adopted the
foregoing by-laws and hereunto affixed our signatures - this _ 24* day of
February ,200__4 at Makat| City, Philippines

(Note: 1. If filed with Articles of Incorporation, these by-laws should be signed by all
incorporaiors;

2. Iffiled after incorporation, should be signud by majority of the subscribers and
should submit director’s certificate for the adoption of the by-laws.)

R Asmdie 0 Jovss 3,',,,,,,
‘ MA. LOURDES A. TORRES BR!N!A/&.fF JEMON

[} ‘
Lo lezpa |
RONAC.G RIO EUFRQUINA L, HENSON

EDUVEGES O. BATALAN
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1226 Makati City
Ell ERNST & YOUNG Philippines
‘ . Phone: (632) 8910307
Fax:  (632) 8190872
www.sgv.com.ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001
SEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-2

| T | |
‘ 1] “ “ I“ ' v : SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co,
b 11 SGVaCo

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

'f'he Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Masrickstar Corporation

annEx <[5 »|

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Masrickstar Cotporation (a subsidiary of
Rayas Equity Development Corporation), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2009,
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a suminary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
riotes. The financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 were
audited by other auditors whose report dated Aptil 27, 2009, expressed an unquahf' ed opuuon on P
those statements. |

Management’s Responsibﬂlty for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Phﬂippme Financial Reporting Standards, This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining intetftal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror; selecting
and applying apptopriate accounting policies; and makmg accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances, -

Auditors’ Responsibility : i

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these finaticial statements based on our audit. We
conducted out audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements atid plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statetnents. The procedures selécted depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circimstances, but not for the purpose of exptessing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audxt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion,




“”l”““H|||||||||[||||uumw'"'"SGV&CO |

£l FrnsT & YOUNG
.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material rcspects the financial position of -
Masrickstar Ccrporatxon as of December 31, 2009, and its financial pérformance and its cash flows for -
the year then ended int accordance with Phlhppme Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GOR.R_E,S VELAYO & CO.

o Nod BugC.COxz

Joht Nai Peng C. Ong

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 85588

SEC Accreditation No. 0327-AR-1

Tax Identification No. 103-093-301 .
PTR No. 2087559, January 4, 2010, Makati City

March 16, 2010




MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of Rayas Equity Development Corporatlon)

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2009
(With Comtparative Figures for 2008)

|
|
\
I
l

2009 2008
ASSETS
Current Asset :
Cash in bank (Notes 4 and 10) P84,325 #85,163
Noncurrent Assets
Investment and advances (Note 5) 3,401,965,489  3,401,980,779
#3,402,049,814 P3,402,065,942
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities _
Accounts payable and other cutrent liabilities (Note 10) _$80,330 £50,330
Noncurrent Liability
Advarices from a related party (Note 7) 3,282,631,139  3,282,631,139
Equity
Capital stock (Note 6) 120,000,000 120,000,000
Deficit (661,655) (615,527) i
Total Equity 119,338,345 119,384,473,
$3,402,049.814 $3,402,065942

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of Rayas Equity Development Corporation)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(With Comparative Figures for 2008)

2009 2008
REVENUE
Interest income (Note 4) _#362 2510
EXPENSES |
Professional fees 40,500 3,000
‘Taxes and licenses 3,980 475,700
Others 2,010 2,650
46,490 481,350
~ NET LOSS (Note 8) 46,128 480,840
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -
TOTAL COWREHENS_iVE LOSS - - P46,128 ~ P480,840

See accompanying Notes to Financlal Statements.




MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of Rayas Equity Development Corporation)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(With Comparative Figures for 2008)

2009 2008
CAPITAL STOCK - Bl par value
Authorized and issued - 120,000,000 shares (Note 6)

Balance at beginning of year #120,000,000 $6,250,000
Issuances o .= 113,750,000
Balance at end of year 120,000,000 120,000,000
DEPOSITS FOR FUTURE STOCK SUBSCRIPTIONS ‘
Balance at beginning of year . - 113,750,000
Application to issuance of capital stock - (113,750,000)
Balance at end of year j - -
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year (615,527) (134,687)
Comprehensive loss ' (46,128) (480,840)
Balance at end of year ~(661,655) (615,527)

$119,338,345 119,384,473

See accompanying Nole.é to Financial Statements.




MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of Rayas Equity Development Corporation)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
(With Comparative Figures for 2008)

See accompanying Notes to Fbl.ancia'l .f‘miemn.ts.. -

i
i

|

2009 2008

CASH Ij'LOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss (B46,128) (R420,340)
Adjustment for interest income (Note 4) (362) (510)
Loss before workitig capital changes (46,490) (481,350)
Increase in accounts payable and other current liabilities 30,000 —
Net cash used for operations (16,490) (481,350)
Interest received _ 362 510
Net cash used in opcratmg activities (16,128) (480,840)

© CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY | j
Decrease (increase) in investternt ahd advances 15,290 (1,687,498,240)
CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Increase in advances from a related party - 1,687,978,590
NET DECREASE IN CASH IN BANK (838) (490)
KCASH IN BANK AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 85,163 85,653
CASH IN BANK AT END OF YEAR 84,325 £85,163

.
.




MASRICKSTAR CORPORATION

(A Subsidiary of Rayas Equity Development Corporation)

NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(With Comparative Figures and Information for 2008)

1.

Corporate Infor'mation

Masrickstat Corporatlon (the Company) was incorporated in the Phxllppmes and registered with
the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 27, 2007. The
Company’s primaty putpose is to purchase, acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer,
mortgage or otherwise dispose, réal and personal property of every kmd including shares of stock,
subscriptions, bonds, notes, securmes, contracts and obhgatlons.

The Company is 60%-owned by Rayas Equity Development Corporation, a company also
incorporated in the Philippines, and 40%-owned by Alphaland Holdings (Singapore} Pte. Ltd.
(Alphaland Holdihgs), 4 company based in Singapore. The registered address of the Company is
17th Floot, Towet 1, Enterpnse Center, 6766 Ayala Avenue, Legaspi Vlllage, Makati City,
Philippines. :

The accompanyitig financial statements of the Company were approved and authorized for issue
by the Board of Dlrectors (BOD) on March 16, 2010.

"

“The accompanyinfg financial statements have been prepired in accordance with Philippine

Summary of Significant Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying fihancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis. The
financial staternents are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. All values are rounded to the neatest peso unit, except when otherwise i
indicated. ; !

The Compatty elected not to account its investment in dn associate under the exemption provided
under Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 28, Investments in Associates. Alphaland Holdings
prepares the group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards which are converged with International Finencial Reporting Standards. The
consolidated financial statements may be obtained at its principal office at No. 8 Cross Street
#11-00 PWC Bulldmg, Smgapore 048424,

State Compliance

Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS also includes PAS and interptetations by the

~ International Finﬁncial-Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).

Changes in Accogntmg Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the prevnous financial year, except for

the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS and Philippine mterpretatlons that became
effective during the year.

PAS 1, Prese;matwn of Financial Statemerits

PAS 23, Borrowing Costs

PFRS 8, Operating Segments

Philippine Interptetation IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investiment in a Foreign Operation
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers

Amendments to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, and PAS 1, Presentation of

Financial Statements - Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
*  Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards,

and PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements - Cost of an Intvestment in a

Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendment to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Vesting Condmons and Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures - Improvmg Disclosures about

Financial Instruments

Improvements to PFRS (2008)

Improvements to PFRS (2009), with respect to the amendment to the Appendix to PAS 18,

Revenue -

*  Standards or interpretations that have been adopted and that are deemed to have an impact on
the financial position or performance of the Company are described below.

* PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements; separates owner and non-owner changes in
equity, The statement of changes in equity includes only details of transactions with owners,
with non-owner changes in equity presented in a reconciliation of each component of equity.
In addition, the standard introduces a new statement of comprehensive income that combines
all items of income and expenses récoghized in the profit of loss together with ‘other
comprehensive incomte.” The amendment specifies whatis included in other comprehensive
income. Entities may choose to present all items in one statetnent o to present two linked

statements, a separate statement of income and a statement of comprehensive income. The
Conipany elected to present a single statement.

«  Amendments.to PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Improving Disclosures about |
Financial Instruments, require additional disclosures about fair value measurement and ’
liquidity risk.: Fair valué meastrements related to items recorded at fair value are to be
disclosed by souitce of inputs usitig a thiee-level fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial
instruments récognized at fair value. In addition, reconciliation between the beginning and
ending balance for Level 3 fair value meéasurements is now required, as well as significant
transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the i
requirements for liquidity risk disclosures with respect to derivative transactions and financial !
assets used for liquidity management. The fair value measurement disclosures are presented
in Note 10. The liguidity risk disclosure is not s1gniﬁcantly mpactcd by the ametidments and
are presented in Note 9.

Future Changes in Accountmg Policies

The Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when
these become efféctive. -Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption
of these new and amended standards and interpretations to have si gmﬁcant impact on its financial
statements.

" Amendmcnts;to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives,
and PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (effective for financial
years beginning on or after June 30, 2009), requires an entity to assess whether an émbedded
derivative must be separated from a host contract when the entity reclassifies a hybrid
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) category. This assessment is
to be tade based on circumstances that existed on the later of the date the entity first became
a party to the contract and the date of any contract amendments that significantly change the
cash flows of the contract, PAS 39 now states that if an cmbedded derivative cannot be
reliably measured, the entire hybrid instrument must remain classified as at FVPL.
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* Revision to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and Amendment to PAS 27, Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements (effective for financial years beginning on or after July 1,
2009). The revised PFRS 3 introduces significant changes in the accounting for business 5
cotnbinations occutring after this date. Changes affect the valuation of non-controlling
interest, the accounting for transaction costs, the initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of a contingent consideration and business combinations achieved in stages.
These changes will 1mpact the amount of goodwill recognized, the reported results in the
period that an acquisition occurs and future reported results, The amended PAS 27, on the
other hand, requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of
control) is accounted for as a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners. Therefore,
such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise to & gain or loss.
Futthetmore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the
subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. The changes introduced by the
revised PFRS 3 and amended PAS 27 will affect future acqu:smons or loss of control of
subsidiaries and transactions with non-controlling interests.

* Amendment to PAS 39, Financial Instrumemts: Recognition and Measurement - Eligible .
Hedged Items (effective for financial years beginning on or after July 1, 2009); clarifies that an
entity is permitted to desighate a portion of the fair value changes or cash flow variability of a
financial insttument as a hedged item. This also covers the desighation of inflation as a
hedged risk or pottion in patticular situations.

*  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 17, Distributions of Nonwcash Assets to Owners (effective for
finaricial years beginning on or after July 1, 2009), provndes guidance on how to account for
non-cash distributions to owners, clarifies when to recognize 4 liability, how to measure it and
the associated assets, and when to derecognize the asset and liability.

*  Amendment t_o PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions (effective for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2010), clarifies the |
scope and the accounting for group cash-settled share-based paythent transactions.

*  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effective
for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2012), covers accounting for revenue and |
associdted expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate directly or §
through subcontractors. The interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate
be recognized only upon completion, except when such contract qualifies as construction
contract to be accounted for under PAS 11, Construction Contracts, ot involves rendering of
services, it which case, revenue is recogmzed based on stage of completion. Contracts
involving provision of services with the construction materials and where the risks and reward
of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for
based on stage of completion.

Improvements to PFRS (2009)

The omnibus amendments to PFRSs issued in 2009 were 1ssued primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The amendments are effective for financial years

beginning on or after January 1, 2010, except otherwise stated. The Company has not yet adopted t
the following amendments and anticipates that these changes will have no material effect on its '
financial statements.

* PFRS 2, Share-based Payment (effective for financial years beginning on or after
July 1, 2009); clarifies that the contribution of a business on formation of a joint venture and
combinations under common control are not within the scope of PFRS 2 even though these are
out of scope of Revised PFRS 3, Business Combinations.
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* PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, clarifies that the
disclosures required in respect of non-curtent assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations are only those set out in PFRS 5. The disclosure requirements
of other PFRS only apply if spemﬁcally required for such tion-current assets or d1scont1nued
operations.

s PFRS 8, Opefatzng Segments, clarifies that segment assets and habﬂmes need only be o
reported when those assets and liabilities are included in measures that are used by the chief
operating decision maker.

» PAS 1, Presentation of Financzal Statements, clarifies that the terms of a liability that could
result, at anytime, in its settlement by the issuance of equity instruments at the option of the
counterparty do not affect its classification. :

. PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, explicitly states that only expenditure that results in a

~ recognized asset can be classified as a cash flow from investing activities.

* PAS 17, Leases, removes the specific guidance on classifying land as a lease. Prior to the |
amendment, leases of land were classified as operating leases. The amendmernt now requires
that leasés of land are classified as either ‘finance’ or ‘operating’ in accordance with the
general principles of PAS 17,

*  PAS 36, Impairment of Assets, clarifies that the largest unit permitted for allocating goodwill,
acquired in a business combination, is the operating segtnent as defined iri PFRS 8 before
aggregatlon for reporting purposes.

» PAS 38, Intangible Assets, clarifies that if an intangible asset acquired in a business
combination is identifiable only with another intangible asset, the acquirer may recognize the
group of intangible assets as & single asset provided the individual assets have similar useful
lives. It also clarifies that the valuation techniques presented for determining the fair value of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination that are not traded in active markets are |
only examples and are not restrictive on the methods that can be used.

*  PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, clarifies the following:

- that a prepayment option is considered closely related to the host contract when the
exetcise price of a prepayment option reimburses the lender up to the approximate present
value of lost interest for the rémaining term of the host contract;

- that the scope exemption for contracts between an acquirer and a vendor in a business
combination to buy or sell an acquiree at a future date applies only to binding forward
contracts, and not derivative contracts where further actions by either party are still to be
taken; and

- that gains or losses on cash flow hedges of a forecast transaction that subsequently results
in the recognition of a financial instrument or on cash flow hedges of recognized financial
instrumetits should be reclassified in the penod that the hedged forecast cash flows affect
profit ot loss.

»  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives, clarifies that it
does not apply to possible reassessment at the date of acquisition, to embedded derivatives in
contracts acquited in a business combination between entities or businesses under common
control or the fortnation of joint venture.
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v  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation, states
. that in a hedge of a net investment in a foreigh operation, qualifying hedging instruments may -
be held by any entity or entities within the group, including the foreign operation itself, as
lonig as the designation, documentation and effectiveness requirements of PAS 39 that rclatc to
~ anet investment hedge are satisfied. .

Financial Ins ents

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial lability in the
balance sheet when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. In the case

of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, ‘
is done using trade date accountmg Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of '

financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation -
or convertion in the marketplace. | !

l
Im‘t:al Recognition of Financial Instrumenis. Finanéial instruments are recognized initially at fair .
value, which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case

of a liability), The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those desxgnated at
FVPL, includes transaction costs.

Determination of Fair Value. The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at
balance sheet date is baged on their quoted market price ot dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and ‘ask price for short positions), without an}ndeductlon for transaction costs.
When current bid and esking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction
provides evidetice of the current fair value as long as there has not been a sighificant change in
economic circimstanhces since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present vatue
techmqucs. comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options
pricing models, and other televant valuation models.

Classification of Financial Instruments. Financial instrumehts are classified as liabilities or

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains
and losses relating to a fittancial instrument or a componert that is & financial Hability are teported .
as expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are
charged directly to equity, net of any related income tax benefits.

Financial assets are further classified into the following categoties; financial assets at FVPL, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale (AFS) financial

assets. Financial 11ab111t1cs are classified as fihancial liabilities at FVPL or other financial
liabilities. .

The classification depends on the putpose for which the instruments are acquired and whether
they are quoted in an active market, Management determines the classification at initial

recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this classification at every reporting
date. .

The Company has no financial assets or liabilities at FVPL, HTM investments and AFS financial
assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.
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Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed ot
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less -
any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated taking into accourt any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of comptehensive income .
when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization
process. Loans and receivables are included in current asseéts if maturity is within 12 months from
the balance sheet date. Otherwise, these ate classified as honcutrent assets. '

Classified as loans and receivables are the Company’s cash in bank (see Note 4).

Other Financial Liabilities. Other financial liabilities pertain to issuéd financial instruments or 5
their components that ate ot classified or desighated at FVPL and contain contractual obligations ¥
to deliver cash or another financial assét to the holder or to settle the obligation other than by the ! ‘
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed humber of own equity L
shares. The components of issued financial instquments that contain both liability and equity
elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual
amount after deducting from the itistrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the
fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.

This category includes loans and borrowings which are initially recognized at fair value of the |
consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. i

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and botrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognized, as _well as through the amortization process.

Classified as other fihancial liabilities are the Company’s accounts payable and other cutrent
liabilities.

Impairment of Financial Assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objectwc
evidence that a specific financial asset may be impaired. - If such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant, If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed finaticial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is
collectively assessed for lmpmrment Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is of continues to be recognized are not mcluded in the collective
assessment of i impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loats and receivables catried at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the diffetence between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall
be reduced either ditectly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is
recognized in the statement of comprehenswe income.




o !'EQ\_"FEFH_!"‘-P-!E!“!-
. - .

._7-

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the dectease can be
related objectively to an event ocourring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of comprehetisive income, to the extent that the catrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amottized cost at the reversal date. -

er ition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial Assets. ‘A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or patt of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

» the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

« the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
~ arrangement; of

* the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has &
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor |
retained substantlally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither |
transferred nor retained substantially all the tisks and rewards of the asset nor transfetred control

of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involverent that takes the form of a guarantee over the transfetred asset is -
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be tequired to repay.

Financial Liability. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. i

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or -
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original hablhty and the recognition of a new :
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. :

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the het amount is reported in the balance sheet if, and
only if, there is currently enfotceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Investment in an Associate

Investment it an associate (entity over whwh the Company has significant influence and which are
neither subsidiary not-a joint venture) is accounted for under the cost method. The investment is
carried in the balatice sheet at cost less any impairment in value. The Company recognizes

income from the investment onily to the extent that the Company receives distributions from
accumulated profits of the dssociate arising after the date of acquisition. Distributions received in
excess of such profits are regarded as tecovery of investment and are recognized as a reduction of
the cost of the investment.




Impairment of Nonfinancial Asset

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is an indication that an asset may

be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company makes ati estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s

recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use and is deterrhined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate .
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets, Where the -
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and

is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value it use, the estimated future cash

flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that teflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Any impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive incomc in those expense categories consistent with
the ﬁmctmn of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously

* recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication

exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recogtiized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount :
since the last impairment loss was tecognized. 1f that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset 5
is increased to its.recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss

~ been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal isvecognized in the statement of i
comprehensive income. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amoutit, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Capital Stock _

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
aitributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as deduction from proceeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/ot fair value of considerations recejved in excess of par value, if any, are
tecognized as addmonal paid-in capital,

Revenue _ _
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, takmg into account the effective
interest yield on the asset.

Expenses
Expenses are recqgmzed as incurred.

Income Tax
Current Tax. Current tax assets and 11ab111t1es for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recoveted from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax

laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantwcly enacted at each
balance sheet date

Deferred Tax. Defetred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary
differences at ¢ach balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their
carrying amounts: for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differeénces.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carryforward
benefits of unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the
carryforward benefits of unused NOLCO can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to .
~ the extent that it is nio longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
patt of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at

each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become ptobable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current
tax assets agamst current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authorlty

Provisions

Provigions are recogmzed when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) asa |
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of respur®es embodying economic benefits will |
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ‘:
obligation. If the.effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by f
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recoghized

as an interest xpense.

Contingencies N
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes !
to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are

dlsclosed in the notes to financial statethents whet inflows of economic benefits are probable.

Events after Balance Sheet Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at balance

sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Signi_ficant Accounting Judgments, Estimétes and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amourits of reverues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. Howevet, future events may occur
that could cause changes in judgment, estimates and assumptions which are reflected in the
financial statements as they b&come reasonably determinable.
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Judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made certain
judgments, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Determination of Functional Currency. The Company deterinined that its functional currency is.
the Philippine peso. The detérmination of functional cutrency was based on the currency that
mainly influences the Company’s reveriue and cost of rendering services,

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concetning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
armounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. PFRS requires certain financial assets and liabilities to be
carried at fair vahie, which requires extensive use of accounting estimates. While significant
components of fair value measurement were detefmined using verifiable objective evidence, the
amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Company utilized different valuation

methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets would affect profit and loss and -

equity.

The fair value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 10.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. An impaitment review is performed when certain impairment

indicators are present. Determining the value in use of investment and advances which requires the:
determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate 4
disposition of such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the financial statements. Future events could cause the Company to conclude that
the investment and advances are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material
adverse impact on the Company’s financial position and performance.

The preparation of estimated fiture cash flows involves significant judgment and estimations. While
the Compary beliéves that the assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, sighificant changes inthe
assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and may lead to future {
impairment charges

The carrying values of investment and advances amounted to £3,401,965,489 and
£3,401,980,779 a5 of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively (see Note 5).

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no lotiger probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to #209,895 and F195 948 as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, respectwely (see Note 8).

Cash in Bank

Cash in bank eams interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Interest income from cash in bank
amounted to 362 and B510 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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Investment and Advances

This account consists of:

2 R , _ 2009 2008
Investment in an associate ' £120,003,600 $£120,003,600
Advances (see Note 7) ~.3,281,961,889  3,281,977,179

L B3,401,965,489 $3.401,980,779

Investment in an associate pertains to the Company’s investment in Alphaland Development, Iné.,
formerly Alphaland Corporation, (ADI). ADI, a company incorporated in the Philippines, is
primatily engaged in real property acquisitioh and development. The Company owns 48% of
ADL

Advances to ADI are intended for future equity conversion.

The summarized financial information of the assc;ciate, not adjusted for the propottion of
ownetship interest held by the Company, is as follows:

. _ , 2009 2008
Total assets P12,631,907,651 £8,309,780,680
Total liabilities _ 2,942,325,367 - 1,334,859,288
Revenue : : 39,196,306 -
Net income (loss) 23,266,897 (56,298,341)

Equity

On January 21, 2008, the SEC approved the increase in the Company’s authorized capital stock
from £100.0 million, consisting of 100,000,000 common shares, to 8120.0 million, consisting of
120,000,000 common shares, both with a pat value of B1 pet share. Consequently, the deposits
for future stock ssbscriptions amounting to #113.8 million wete applied for the issuance of
113,750,000 million common shares.

. Related Party Trainsactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This
includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control
or are controlled by, or under common control with the Company; (b) associates; and

(c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that
gi;es them significant influence over the Company and close members of the family of any such
individual. .

R

i
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 In the ordinary course of business, the Company obtains from and grants its related parties
noniriterest-bearing cash advatices to fitiance operational and capital expenditure requirements.
Details of advances to and from related parties are as follows:

o Advances to

Related Party . Relationship Year {see Note 5) Advances from
ADI Associate 2009 "¥3,281,961,880 .
j . 2008 3,281,977,179 S

Alphaland Holdings Stockholder 2009 - 3,282,631,139
: 2008 - 3,282,631,139

2009 #3,281,961,880 - P3,282,631,139

2008 ] F3,281,977,179 . P3,282.631,139

. Advances from Alphaland Holdlngs represents direct fund remittances to ADI, which are intended -

for future equity conversion.

Also, ADI provides the administrative support such as legal, financial and human resource
management of the Company at no cost.

Income Taxes

No provision for income tax was recognized in 2009 and 2008 as the Company is in a tax loss
position.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets amounting to 209,895 and £195,948 as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, respectively, relate to the tax effect of carryforwatd benefits of NOLCO. The deferred
tax asset was not fécognized since management believes that it is not probable that sufficient
future taxable income will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

NOLCO that can be claithed as deduc_tion from futute taxable income are as follows:

Year Incurred Year of Expiry Amount
2007 - 2010 B171,810
2008 2011 481,350
2009 2012 46,490

8699,650

A reconciliation of benef t from income tax computed at statutory income tax rates to provision
for income tax at effective income tax rates is as follows:

_ _ 2009 2008
Income tax bénefit computed at statutory tax rates (®13,838) (R168,294)
Change in untecognized deferred tax assets 13,947 144,405
Interest income stibjected to final tax (109) (179
Effect of change in income tax rate ' - 24,068

Effective January 1, 2009, the rate of regular corporate mcome tax was reduced from 35% to 30%
in accordance with Repubhc ActNo. 9337.
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9. Fin#hcial Risk Management Objectives :_'t‘ndrPolicies
The Company’s pfincipal financial instrument compﬁs'c cash in bank. The main purpose of these
finaticial instruments is to finance the Company’s opetations. The Company has other financial
liabilities such as accounts payable and other curtent liabilities, whxch arise directly from its
operatiofis. :
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instrunents is liquidity risk. The BOD
reviews and approves the policies for managing this tisk.
Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential of not meeting obligations as they become due because of an
inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding.
The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk relates to raising funds to meet obligations associated
with finaneial liabilities.
The Company manages its liquidity profile to be able to finance capital expenditures. To cover its
financing requirements, the Company intends to use internally gererated furids.
‘ i
The Company’s accounts payable and other cutrent liabilities are due and demandable. ?
) i
Capital Management * ;
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure an adequate teturn to its
shareholders and to maximize shareholders value.
!
The Company thahages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in 5
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
return of capital to shareholder of issue new shares. The Compaty is not subject to externally ‘
imposed capital requirements in 2009 and 2008. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
‘or processes in 2009 and 2008. E
|
10. Financml Instruments .
The table below sets forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company’s
financial assets and financial liabilities recognized as of December 31. )
: 2009 | 2008
Carrying Carrying
. Amount  Fair Value = Amount  Fair Value
Financial Assets :
Loans and receivables -
Cash in bank ‘ P84,325 ~ $84325 P85,163 P85,163
Financia! Liabilities |
Other financial liabilities -
Accoutits payable and

other currént liabilities  $80,330 80,330 £50,330 £50,330

Cash in Bank and Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities. Due to the short-term nature
of transactions, the carrying amounts of these instruments approximate the fair values as of
balance sheet date. .
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Fair Value Hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a sngmﬁcant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Leve! 3: techniques which use jtputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that
are hot based on observable market data, .

As of December 3 1 2009 and 2008 there were no ﬁnanclal assets and liabilities measured at fair
value,




{Tt ba filed up by the BIR)
* _DLN:

- . LBCSNo
= fepublika ng Pilipinas

P
‘ Kewanhan g Renias iiumas _
Corporations, Partnershipé and Othir Non-Individug! Taxpayers

e

For

Annual Inc

Tax Ret

ul

0,00 0,4
11
17/F TOWER 1, THE ENTERPRISE CENTER, AYALA AVE., MAKATI CITY

o L

L
i

o

AAB and Date of Receipt
(RO'S Signature/
Bank Teiler's Initial)

1

| ’ :

| 5

‘ #

|
i

] %

H o

| N
| Maching VaRdeborRevenve
; i
|




JAIME U. MANANSALA
Certified Public Accountant
4 Prater Village, Ampid San Matea
Rizal Philippines

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - April 15,2010

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BOERSTAR CORPORATION

17/F, Tower 1 The Enterprise Center

Ayala Avenue, Makati City

I have audited the financial statements of Boerstar Corporatlon comprise the balance sheets
of December 31, 2009, and the financial statements of i income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year ended, December 31, 2009. o

sR for the Fi al S

Management is mspons:ble for the preparation and fair presentation  of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally e
principles. This responsibility includes; designing, 1mplementing and maintai)
con&olmlwmthﬂwpresmtahonmdfaﬁpmenﬁﬂonofﬁnmidmtementsmmmm
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applymg
appropriate accounting policies, and. making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

A r's ibili

My mspons;bahty is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audi
conducted my audit in accordance with Philippines Standards on Auditing. Thoscstandards
reqmrethatlcomplyw:ﬂ:ethtcalrequirementsandplanandperfonntheaudittoobwn
mamnableasmmncewhethertheﬁnmcmlsmmtsmﬁbeﬁommdmsstammt

An audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s

judgment, including the assessments of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statement whether due to fraud or error. Inmakmgthoscriskasmsments the auditor’s
considers internal control relevamtothccnﬁtysprepmtionandfaxrpresmtaﬂonofthe
ﬁnanclalstatemmtsmordertodeslgnaudxtptowdmsthatm' priateinthe
circumstance, but not for the purpose ofexpmmnganopmxon on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriates of accounting
pohmausedandtheregsomblmssofacmun&ngesﬁmatemadebymanagemcntaswcllas
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. ' I believe that the audit

evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. -

AR
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OPINION

In my opinion, the financial statement present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Boerstar Corporation as of December 31, 2009 and of its findncial |
for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting princ

PTR No. 2098275
January 7, 2010
San Mateo, Rizal
Philippines




ASSETS

BOERSTAR GORPORATION
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

.

Cash on Hand & in Bank
investment

P ~ 334,075.07 P 50,978,28
832,347,153.73 142,153 166.50_

TOTAL ASSETS

P -'mzza.so P 142,213,144.78

LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liablities _
Advances from Stockholders

| JOTAL STOCKHOLDRS' EQUITY

| Totsl Liabites

| st holers' Equity:
 Authorized Capital Stock 1,000,000 shares

Share at P1.00 par value per share

Subscribed Capital Stock

P1,000,000.00

SEmooETRRTRETER

P 250,000.00 P 250,000.00
(853.22)

24934678 P 250,000.00

A L0 O

o o




BOERSTAR CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF INCOME & RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE MONTH ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2009

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

| Tierest Income, Net of Final Tax | ~T38T8
| Loss on investment, Decline on MV P

Less. Expenses
Professional Fee P 3,000.00 P -

JOTAL EXPENSES T F 300000 B -
NET INCOME (LOSS) _ ﬁ ~ ,, R
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JAIME U. MANANSALA
Certified Public Accountant
4 Prater Village, Ampid San Matee
Rizal Philippines

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT April 15, 2010

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AZURESTAR CORPORATION

17/F, Tower 1 The Enterprise Center

Ayala Avenue, Makati City

I have audited the financial statements of Azurestar _C_ortpora_tion comprise the balance sheets
of December 31, 2009, and the financigl statements of '
flows for the year ended, December 31, 2009,

income, changeé in equity and cash

principles. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maitaining interna)
control relevant to the presentation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due ﬁ'aud or enﬁi-, sglect!ng and applying
appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

Auditor’s ibili

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 1
conducted my audit in accordance with Philippines Standards on Auditing, Those standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financia! statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, mpmeﬂmessglgctgddcpmdonthsmditoﬁs
judgment, including the assessments of the risks of material misstatement of the fipancial
statement whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments; the auditor’s
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are app iate in the
circumstance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriates of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimate made by management, ag well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. I believe: that the -studit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion,

]
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QPINION

In my opinion, the financial statement tfauly,inallmaterialr&spects.the financial
position of Azurestar Corporanonasof ber 31, 2009 and of its financial performance
fmtheyemﬂmnendedinmrdancew:ﬂ;genemllympwdmmﬁngpﬂndpks

CPA CERT. 'No. 24608
BOA Ndg. 1198

PTR No. 2098275
January 7, 2010

San Mateo, Rizal
Philippines




AZURESTAR CORPORATION
BALANGE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009

December 31,2008  December 31, 2008

ASSETS
Cash on Hand & in Bank P 80000 P 50,000
Investment in- Shares of Stocks ‘ 201,173,121 201,173,121
Other investment (Alphaland Corp.) 95,016,081 95,016,061
TOTAL ASSETS - 9,1 239,182

LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Uiabilites: | )

Advances from Stockholders P 166,540325 P 166,555,325
'~ Liabilities P '166;1%“5 P __ 166,565,325
Stockhoiders' Equity:

Authorized Capital Stock, 10,000,000 shrs @ P1.00 per share

Capital Stock P 625,000 P 625,000
—Retained Eamings 20052887 120058857
Totat Stockholders' Equi P_ me 357 P 129,883,857

TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHO!
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AZURESTAR COQRPQRATION
STATEMENT OF INCOME & RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE MONTH ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2008

December 31,2009  December 31, 2008

-

Loss on Investment, Declineon MV — BB (22140824

Less: Expenses
Professional Fee P 5,000 P 5,000

TOTAL EXPENSES | P ) 5,000 P 5000
NET INCOME (LOSS




